
BOARD OF SELECTMEN
MEETING AGENDA

Fuller Meadow School
Nathan Media Room

143 South Main Street, Middleton, MA 01949
Tuesday, January 30,2018

7:00 PM
This meeting is being recorded

1. 7:00 PM Warrant

Minutes:

• October 10, 2017 regular meeting

• November 21,2017 regular meeting

• January 16,2018 regular meeting
Town Administrator updates and reports

2. 7:10 PM Request from Attorney Jill Mann, on behalf of Philip Colosi and Joanne Colosi as trustees of
PC Development Realty Trust, for the BOS to vote their intent to lay out Ohlson Way as a

public way per MGLc82,ss21-24 and to refer the petitioner's request to the Planning Board for
their recommendation per MGLc41 ,s811

3. 7:15 PM Request from Attorney Jill Mann, on behalf of Beech Brook Farm LLC, to name roadway
located at 161 Essex Street

4. 7:20 PM Request from Attorney David Ankeles, on behalf of Ryebrooke, LLC, for the BOS to vote
their intent to lay out Zaloga Way as a public way per MGLc82,ss21-24 and to refer the
petitioner's request to the Planning Board for their recommendation per MGLc41,s81I

5. 7:25 PM Vote to open the warrant for the May 8, 2018 Annual Town Meeting

6. 7:30 PM Approval of Fiscal Year 2018 operations and maintenance sewer rate for South Essex Sewer

district billings

7. 7:35 PM Overview of recent update to Open Meeting Law regulations, 940 CMR 29.00-29.11

8. 7:45 PM Vote to accept a donation of $ 1 ,000 from Bostik to the Middleton Food Pantry

9. 7:50 PM New Business: Reserved for topics that the Chair did not reasonably anticipate would be
discussed

The Board reserves the right to consider items on the agenda out of order. Not all items listed may in fact be

discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.



Board of Selectmen Meeting

October 10, 2017

7:00 p.m.

Fuller Meadow School

Nathan Media Room

Call to Order - Chairman Brian Cresta called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. Also present were Mr. Todd

Moreschi, Mr. Kosta Prentakis, Mr. Rick Kassiotis, Town Administrator Mr. Andrew Sheehan and Assistant Town

Administrator Mr. Ryan Ferrara. Chairman Cresta announced that the meeting is being recorded.

Warrant - The Payroll Warrant totaled $700,329. The Payables Warrant totaled $1,646,254 and included

$75,433 for payroll deductions, $92,464 for paving on East Street, $972,788 for purchase of power and $302,365

for schools including $49,600 for miscellaneous technology.

Mr. Prentakis made a motion to approve the Warrants. Mr. Moreschi seconded the motion and all were in

favor.

Minutes - Mr. Prentakis made a motion to accept the regular and executive session minutes of September 26,

2017 os written. Mr. Houten seconded the motion and all were in favor.

Town Administrator's Report

• Memorial Hall - A kick-off meeting was held recently with the contractor hired to do the structural

repairs at Memorial Hall. Based on schedule, turnaround time for shop drawings, final design elements

and insurances, the project will start in mid-November and will take approximately three months to

complete. There is an article on the November 7, 2017 Special Town Meeting Warrant for some

supplemental funding for this project.

• Open Meeting Law Updates - The Attorney General's Office have produced updates to the Open

Meeting Law. These include additional requirements in respect to agendas, content of agendas and

meeting minutes. Eileen Twiss, Town Clerk is working on these and will send out guidelines to Boards

and Committees along with a model agenda.

• Free Cash - Mr. Sheehan said that Free Cash was certified last week at $2.2M, which is $200,000 higher

than last year. This puts the Town in a strong position in terms of operating budget and reflects well on

all departments.

• Town Counsel Solicitation - Mr. Sheehan put forward a suggestion to postpone the process of

reviewing bids for Town Counsel in light of the upcoming Special Town Meeting. It is proposed that the

new contract be in place by January 1, 2018. It was agreed that the current extension, in place until

October 31, 2017, will be extended at the next Board of Selectman meeting.

Update on proposed solar energy generation facility to be located on land owned by Richardson's Farms

behind the Market Basket plaza and in front of the Danvers Fish and Game Club, presented byJared Haines of

HG Solar LLC and MELD Manager, Michael Cloutier - Mr. Michael Cloutier addressed the Board and stated they

hope to get a Payment-in-Lieu-of-Taxes (PILOT) agreement for a solar project on land owned by Richardson's

Farms. There are two changes from the previous proposal - the land is smaller in footprint but larger in terms of

1

1

mcreasi
Highlight



energy output. There is an urgency to get this project started as the solar renewable energy certificates (SRECs)

from the State will not be available next year. The project is scheduled to start as soon as permission is granted

by the Zoning Board, Board of Appeals, Special Town Meeting and successful outcome of a pole test scheduled

for Thursday. The project is due to be completed by March 31, 2018 if there are no weatherrelated delays.

Mr. Jared Haines of HG Solar LLC addressed the Board and said that the land will be rented from Richardson's

initially by HG Solar LLC and upon completion of the project, outside investors will be invited to purchase the

rights to own and run the project via a twenty five year contract.

Mr. Haines showed the Board a map of the proposed site and said part of the installation will include fencing of

the whole site and installation of security cameras.

Mr. Cloutier explained that this will be the first utility scale project. There is no home grown solar energy in

town. It represents about 6% of the Town's energy overall, 4.6 Megawatts AC. At peak this will represent about

20% of the Town's peak energy demand. Rates will be stabilized at a set rate for the twenty-five year contract.

Mr. Cloutier added that as part of the mutual aid project which MELD is involved with through North East Public

Power Association and reimbursed by FEMA, a crew was sent to Florida responding to a request for assistance.

They spent ten days restoring power to three separate utilities. A subsequent request for mutual aid has been

received from St. Thomas and MELD are in the process of sending a crew and a bucket truck. They will spend

two weeks working on restoring power and then the crew will be switched out at two week intervals until the

project is completed. This could take up to eight weeks.

Review of Fiscal Year 2017 fourth quarter General Fund financial highlights, presented by Chief Financial

Officer/Town Accountant Sarah Wood - Sarah Wood addressed the Board and said that Fiscal Year 2017 ended

at a good standpoint with 95% of the budget spent overall. There were no line items overspent.

Regarding revenues, there was an overall surplus of approximately $98,000 from the budgeted amount with a

few categories that fell short. One problematic category was real estate and personal property taxes. Bills

went out on time but were not paid in a timely manner. Approximately $300,000 was received for real estate

for the end through the end of the year. 37% of this amount has been collected through October 5, 2017.

Mr. Sheehan said there is a concern nationally about auto sales so there may be a need to decrease the vehicle

revenue estimate.

Ms. Wood said regarding Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) Reserve, the interest received is $109,000

because the fund is doing very well. Ms. Wood said she is talking with the Treasurer to ascertain if there are any

other accounts that can be moved to improve return.

Ms. Wood said that books were closed September 6, 2017. Auditors completed their field work by September

15, 2017 and Free Cash was certified on October 3, 2017. There were very few questions from the auditors. Mr.

Sheehan said Auditors have said they are very happy with progress made since their long list of

recommendations last year.



Demonstration/overview of the Town's new online permitting portal, presented by Building Commissioner

Scott Fitzpatrick - Mr. Ferrara addressed the Board and said that work to source the new permitting system has

been ongoing over the last eighteen months. The primary users are the Health Department, Building

Department and Inspection Services Department and will eventually include the Planning Department and the

Zoning Board. Many systems were considered and Middleton ultimately chose Citizenserve, based in Arizona.

Somerville, MA is currently utilizing Citizenserve. Citizenserve came in at the lowest cost, on a per user basis of

$1,800 per user per year. Mr. Derek Fullerton, Health Department went live with the system six months ago and

Mr. Fitzpatrick and the Building Department have been using the system internally since November 2016. The

system has been well received. There is a terminal in the office and members of the department are available in

an advisory capacity, although the permitting process can now be done remotely. The first building permit used

through the new on-line system was for the Cumberland Farm project and the first payment was received on the

on-line permitting system today for a sign permit.

Mr. Fitzpatrick gave a demonstration on how the online portal system works and how to apply for a permit.

Mr. Ferrara said this is the culmination of a lot of work and expressed gratitude to Ms. Katrina O'Leary and

Derek Fullerton who recommended Citizenserve. Mr. Fitzpatrick also thanked Lisa Brown for her hard work in

the implementation of this system.

New Business: Reserved for topics that the Chair did not reasonably anticipate would be discussed - Mr.

Prentakis said that the Pumpkin Festival scheduled for October 21, 2017 and if anyone interested in volunteering

please contact Tim Houten.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:38 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

Jt^iCe/Kow^
Julie Roscoe, Recording Secretary

Kosta Prentakis, Clerk



Board ofSelectmen Meeting

November 21, 2017

7:00 p.m.

Fuller Meadow School

Cafeteria

Call to Order - Chairman Brian Cresta called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. Also present were Mr. Todd Moreschi,

Mr. Kosta Prentakis, Mr. Rick Kassiotis, Town Administrator Mr. Andrew Sheehan and Assistant Town Administrator Mr.

Ryan Ferrara. Chairman Cresta announced that the meeting is being recorded.

Warrant - The Payroll Warrant totaled $681,637. The Payables Warrant totaled $3,203,576 and includes $79,661 for

payroll deductions, $334,579 for purchase of power and $2,310,496 for the Masconomet assessment and $303,581 for

health insurance deductions.

Mr. Prentakis made a motion to approve the Warrants. Mr. Kassiotis seconded the motion and all were in favor.

Minutes - Mr. Prentakis made a motion to accept the November 7, 2017 and November 22, 2016 Board ofSelectmen

Minutes as written. Mr. Kassiotis seconded the motion and all were in favor.

Town Administrator's Report

• Commercial Project on 177 North Main Street - Mr. Sheehan said this project is progressing.

The Building Commissioner has recently inspected the site and confirmed that the project is in

compliance with the site plan, zoning by-laws and all necessary permits.

• Holiday Office Closings - Town Offices are closed Thursday through the weekend for the

Thanksgiving holidays.

• The Neighbors in Need Program -This program is run by Friends of the Flint Public Library and

this year is dedicated to Gimmie Sue Valacer who passed away on April 3, 2017. Donations for

the program will be accepted until December 1. More information is available on the Flint

Public Library's website and the Town's website.

• Fiscal 2019 Budget - The Finance Team have commenced preliminary work on Fiscal 2019

budget. Budget instructions will go out to the Departments in mid-December along with the

Town Meeting calendar. The Tax classification should be finalized by the next Board of

Selectmen meeting along with the License renewals.

• Volunteer Opportunities - There are a number of openings on Boards and Committees in Town.

Interested parties can find more information on the Town's website.

Presentation by Senator Bruce Tarr of a citation to the Middleton Police Department from the Massachusetts State

Senate in honor of Middleton Reserve Police Officer Michele Nowak - Senator Tarr addressed the Board and said he

was honored to pay tribute to Michele Nowak. Senator Tarr thanked members of the Tri-Town Police Department for

their service and said Officer Nowak was an outstanding member of the Police Department. He explained that there is a

special mechanism in the Senate, to recognize people who have made a commitment and/or sacrifice by significantly

contributing to the life of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts by 'Adjourning The Senate' in their memory. Senator



Tarr said he had the honor of reading out the order in Chambers today. Chief DiGianvittorio has agreed to display a copy

of the Journal of the Senate in the Middleton Police Station where it can be seen by members of the Police Department

and members of the public. Senator Tarr read the Journal of the Senate and then presented the Journal to Chief

DiGianvittorio. Chairperson Cresta thanked Senator Tarr and Michele Nowak's family and friends for attending the

meeting tonight.

Interviews of Legal Firms As Recommended By The Town Counsel Screening Committee:

1) Segal Edelstein Bussone & Fallon

2) Mead, Talerman and Costa, LLP

Mr. Sheehan said he was instructed by the Board to explore a change in Town Counsel services. An RFP was distributed

and eight proposals were received from firms or individuals. A working group was convened to review proposals

consisting of himself. Assistant Town Administrator Ryan Ferrara, Town Clerk llene Twiss, and Town Moderator Lynn

Murphy. The working group narrowed the field to two firms listed above who are invited to appear before the Board for

interview.

Attorney Tom Fallon, of Segal Edelstein Bussone & Fallon addressed the Board and said his firm has served the Town for

thirty five years. He grew up in the area and is very familiar with the Town and the Town's by-laws. His firm offers the

Town a flat rate fee of $60,000 as detailed in his written proposal. Mr. Fallen presented the Board with the reasons he

believes his company should remain as the Town of Middleton's Town Counsel. The Board members participated in a

question and answer session with Mr. Tom Fallen.

Mr. Fallen summarized by saying, he feels he is a better Town Counsel now than at the start of his career, his knowledge

of the town has increased, he has an enormous loyalty to the town and would love the opportunity to continue to serve

as Town Counsel.

Jason Talerman and Adam Costa from Mead, Taterman & Costa, LLP attended the meeting. Jason Talerman addressed

the Board and said he feels his firm delivers law related services to municipalities in a different way. Their firm got their

first town counsel municipal client in 2007 and to date have fourteen municipalities and assorted special town services

for many more communities. Their firm employs eight attorneys and covers all phases of municipal law. Their approach

is different, they want counsel to be part of a team, dispensing preventative medicine to provide economy, be part of

the solution and keep costs down. They offer a flat fee arrangement including litigation, opinions, attendance at

meetings, contract work and procurement advice with some exclusion's. They also offer a second tier of flat fee

arrangements. Exclusions to both models include tax title, cable licensing agreements and labor and employment

matters.

Mr. Costa addressed the Board and said what sets them apart from other firms is their accessibility and availability.

They pride themselves on staying in constant contact with clients. The Board proceeded to ask a number of scripted

questions. Mr. Talerman and Mr. Costa said they would appreciate the opportunity to work with and for the Town of

Middleton. The Board indicated they would consider both applications and make a decision at a future meeting.

Vote on request from Attorney Jill Mann for the Board of Selectmen to waive its rights, pursuant to MGL 61A, Section

14, to act on their right of first refusal to purchase a portion of a parcel of land transferring out the Chapter 61A

(agricultural exemption) program located behind 230 South Main Street, Assessors Map 30, Lot 188C for use as a solar

energy project. - Attorney Mann addressed the Board said she is here on behalf of HG Solar Systems who have secured,

through Mr. Daniels, an 18.5 acre portion of land behind Market Basket, for the solar project to be housed on. Attorney

2



Mann said they have succeeded in obtaining alt permits for use of land as an essential service, secured notice of intent

and they have secured the payment-in-lieu-of-taxes (PILOT) which allows the project to be financeable by the

developers. The project will leased for a 25 year term. The Town has the right to secure an appraisal of what the leased

parcel is worth. Attorney Mann explained that she is here tonight to ask the Board to waive the right for an appraisal

and the right to acquire the parcel so that the project can progress.

Mr. Kassiotis made a motion to Board Of Selectmen to waive its rights pursuant to MGL 61A, Section 14, to act on

their right of first refusal to purchase a portion of a parcel of land transferring out the Chapter 61A (agricultural

exemption) program located behind 230 South Main Street, Assessors Map 30, Lot 188C for use as a solar energy

project.

Mr. Prentakis seconded the motion and all were in favor.

Request of Philomena Rago, of 62 Peaselee Circle, to waive the Oakdale Cemetery rules and regulations to permit a

larger headstone at Oakdale Cemetery - Chairperson Cresta said the Board received a letter dated October 13th

requesting waiver of the decision to have a larger headstone at the plots purchased at Oakdale Cemetery by Philomena

Rago. The proposed headstone will be standard height and 4 feet, 7 inches in length instead of the regulation of 3 feet 6

inches. This headstone will encompass four plots.

Mr. Prentakis made a motion to waive the Oakdale Cemetery rules and regulations to permit a larger headstone at

the request of Philomena Rago. Mr. Kassiotis seconded the motion and all were in favor.

Review of November 7, Special Town Meeting - Chairperson Cresta thanked the Town Clerk and Town Moderator for

their participation in the Special Town Meeting which was challenging because of the number of participants. Mr.

Sheehan addressed the Board and said that he was very pleased with the turnout and it is the first time he has ever

attended a Town Meeting that was over capacity. Mr. Sheehan summarized by saying:

• Acceptance of Roads and the Finance Articles were accepted.

• PILOT project was approved for the property behind Market Basket, owned by Richardson Farms.

• citizens petition for liquor licenses -The Town meeting sent a clear message that two all-alcohol licenses that

the town currently holds are sufficient.

• Natsue Way Recreational Project - The outcome was hard to predict. We heard resounding sentiment from the

community about the project. Regarding the technical issues that we had that night, we prepared for an

overflow room in the cafeteria and that was working prior to meeting, we had tested it out that day and earlier

that evening and the issue was that it is a wireless system and everyone that attended meeting with smart

phone or laptop essentially overwhelmed the wireless system. We are already in the process of developing

permanent fixed connection solution for that issue. More details will be available at the next Selectmen's

meeting regarding price.

Mr. Sheehan thanked everyone for attending the Special Town Meeting.

Acceptance of quitclaim deeds 166, 166A and 167 located on Glen Road in Middleton, Massachusetts, from Joan

Mason and Cynthia Perry a/k/a/ Cynthia Mason-Triana for conservation purposes as authorized by MGL C40, Section

8C - Mr. Sheehan said that he has been contacted by Joan Mason offering this parcel of land to the Town as it abuts

town owned land. The Conservation Commission voted unanimously to accept this property.

Mr. Prentakis made a motion to confirm acceptance of quitclaim deeds 166, 166A and 167 located on Glen Road in

Middleton, Massachusetts, from Joan Mason and Cynthia Perry a/k/a/ Cynthia Mason-Triana for conservation

purposes as authorized by MGL C40, Section 8C. Mr. Moreschi seconded the motion and all were in favor.



Vote to accept a donation of $640 from Christine Lindberg of 9 Lake Street on behalf of a group of donors, to the

Middleton Food Bank - Ms. Lindberg addressed the Board and thanked everyone who participated in this charitable

event to raise money, food and other donations for the Middleton Food Pantry. Ms. Lindberg extended thanks to the

Gleeson family who donated shirts, Angelica's, Maggie's, Teresa's and The Club House and said they hope to make this

an annual event.

Mr. Prentakis made a motion with thanks to accept the donation of $640 from Christine Lindberg to the Middleton

Food Bank. Mr. Kassiotis seconded the motion and all were in favor.

Vote to appoint Judith Schnieder as a member of the Middleton Board of Health through June 30, 2018.

Mr. Prentakis made a motion to appoint Judy Schneider as a member of the Middleton Board of Health through June

30, 2018. Mr. Kassiotis seconded the motion and all were in favor.

Vote to appoint Srdjan Perisic as an Alternate Member of the Middleton Recreation Commission through June 30,

2018.

Mr. Prentakis made a motion to appoint Srdjan Perisic as an Alternate Member of the Middleton Recreation

Commission through June 30, 2018. Mr. Moreschi seconded the motion and all were in favor.

New Business; Mr. Prentakis addressed the Board and said that the State Distributed CPA match funds and have an

extra $14,000 beyond which was budgeted. The Town of Middleton's share of the Masconomet assessment will be

down .4% for the Fiscal Year 2019 budget.

Chief Wills Winter Festival is scheduled for December 2,2017 and everyone is encouraged to attend.

Mr. Prentakis made a motion to adjourn the meeting. The meeting was adjourned at 9:53 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

.TuUe^Kc^co^
Julie Roscoe, Recording Secretary Kosta Prentakis, Clerk



Minutes of the MIDDLETON BOARD OF SELECTMEN
Fuller Meadow School

Nathan Media Room

143 South Main Street, Middleton, MA 01949
January 16, 2018 7:OOPM

Present: Chair Brian Cresta, Kosta Prentakis, Timothy Houten, Todd Moreschi, Rick Kassiotis

Absent: None

Others Present: Town Administrator Andrew Sheehan, Assistant Town Administrator Ryan Ferrara,

Minutes Secretary Judi Stickney, Natasha Murphy Bansfield, Public Works Superintendent Bob
LaBossiere, Fire Chief Tom Martinuk, Leah Stanton, and others

7:00 PM Chairman Brian Cresta called the meeting to order at 7:OOPM

• Warrant: After a brief review of the weekly bills ($986,137) and payroll ($577,800) warrants by
Town Administrator Andrew Sheehan, the Board took the following action:

On a MOTION made by Prentakis, second by Houten, the Board of Selectmen VOTED
unanimously to approve warrant number 1815, dated 1/18/18, as presented.

• Minutes: After a brief review of the Minutes of January 2, 2018, the Board took the following

action:

On a MOTION made by Houten, second by Prentakis, the Board of Selectmen VOTED
unanimously to accept the minutes as presented.

• Town Administrator's Report: Town Administrator Andrew Sheehan provided the Board with
updates and information on the following:

o Board and Committee Openings: Sheehan advised there are several openings on boards

and committees. If interested, see the Town's website for the list. Sheehan advised

there is also a need for a Registrar of Voters: Democrat, Republican, or Unenrolled.

Contact the Town Clerk if interested.

o Prepaying Property Taxes: Sheehan advised that the Tax Collector's office was very busy

at the end of 2017, noting that Amy LeMay took in $704,000 in last 3 Vz days of 2017.
Sheehan thanked Ms. LeMay for her hard work in facilitating the unexpected volume of

payments.

o Thanks to the Middleton PD: Sheehan advised that there was a marijuana shipment

busted on North Main Street, with the assistance of Middleton PD and other
enforcement agencies.

o Meals Tax Collection: Sheehan advised that in the first two quarters of FY18, the town is
on track with Meals Tax collection, noting that it is trending in the right direction,
compared to previous years.

o Revenue Estimate: Sheehan advised that the State is suggesting that the revenue

estimate will be 3 Yi percent higher than the previous year. He will know more after the
MMA meeting at the end of the week.

o New Town Counsel: Sheehan advised the transition to the new Town Counsel is going

well and they will be coming in to meet with department heads and the Board in the
next month or two.

Middleton Board ofSeiectmen Meeting Minutes

January 16, 2018 Page I



o Essex County Regional Emergency Communications Center.: Sheehan advised there

have been changes in management at the Essex County Regional Emergency

Communications Center. He met with the Sheriff and staff along with some State
agencies, who were in town today to show support for the Communications Center.

Sheehan noted there is an interim Director who is taking over day-to-day operations and

has already made positive changes in transparency and staff retention.

o Nomination Papers Available: Sheehan advised that nomination papers for the May
election are available from the Town Clerk.

7:12 PM Discussion of Recreational Spaces: Natasha Murphy Bansfield, of the Recreation
Commission, met with the Board to discuss upgrades to fields and recreation spaces in town:

• Transfer Station Fields: A lengthy discussion ensued on the needs of the Transfer Station Fields,

with members of the Recreation Commission, Selectmen Chair Brian Cresta, Public Works

Superintendent Bob LaBossiere all contributing to the discussion. Highlights of the discussion
included:

o Parking Area: Murphy Bansfield advised there is a safety issue with the parking there.
She asked that it be looked into before there is an accident. A discussion ensued, with
other members of the Recreation Commission contributing to the discussion, supporting

the parking changes. Public Works Superintendent Bob LaBossiere also contributed to
the discussion.

o Play Structures: Murphy Bansfield suggested that a play structure be installed to keep
younger children occupied while older siblings play their sport.

o Pavilion/Shade Structure: Murphy Bansfield suggested some sort of shelter be installed
for shade and shelter from rain, hail, etc. Other members of the Recreation Commission

contributed to the discussion, supporting the storm shelter. It was also noted that there

is one porta potty for use by up to 150 kids and parents. Chair Cresta advised Murphy
Bansfield to contact the Town Administrator regarding the additional porta potties
requested.

o Moving Bleachers: Murphy Bansfield requested that the bleachers be moved to where
people actually sit. Public Works Superintendent LaBossiere advised Murphy Bansfield
to contact his department and they will move the bleachers.

Discussion turned to funding for the requested improvements. Cresta suggested that fundraising may

supplement some of the items requested, as has been done in the past with other town projects,

including the library. Selectman Prentakis provided information on other possible funding resources and

a lengthy discussion ensued on funding field improvements. Prentakis advised the CPA Committee will
be meeting in March to review available funds and funding requests, noting that some of the Recreation

Commission's requests may be allowed to be partially funded with CPA funds.

7:49 PM Council on Aging Appointments: Chair Brian Cresta advised the Board that Wendy Tirck and
Ellen Strobel have expressed interest in volunteering to serve on the Council on Aging as Alternate

members and the Board took the following action:
On a MOTION made by Houten, second by Prentakis, the Board of Selectmen VOTED
unanimously to appoint Wendy Tirck and Ellen Strobel, as Alternate members of the Middleton
Council on Aging for a term ending June 30, 2018.

Middleton Board ofSelectmen Meeting Minutes

January 16, 2018 Page 2



7:51 PM Vote to Accept Donation on Behalf of the Middleton Food Bank: The Board was provided
with a copy of a $500 donation check for the Middleton Food Bank from NEFP, Inc. DBA Yankee
Fireplace, Grill and Patio. After a brief discussion:

On a MOTION made by Prentakis, second by Kassiotis, the Board of Selectmen VOTED
unanimously to accept the donation to the food bank.

7:51 PM Discussion of Lakeview Avenue Water Pressure Issues: Leah Stanton, Weston and Sampson

consultant, along with the Public Works Superintendent Bob LaBossiere, and many residents, met with

the Board of Selectmen to discuss the water pressure issues on Lakeview Avenue. LaBossiere advised

that Weston and Sampson did testing on the water pressure and reported a pressure of 15-35 PSI at

street level, when the plant is shut down. When the plant is running, the PSI is around 35 PSI.

Fire Chief Tom Martinuk contributed to the discussion, noting that the Fire Department is very
concerned that there may be little to no water available on Lakeview Avenue for fire suppression until

the issue is resolved. Stanton suggested that a hydrant be installed mid-level on the hill, which would

provide the necessary water.

A lengthy discussion ensued with many Lakeview Avenue residents contributing to the conversation,

relating their issues with their household water pressure. Stanton provided information on booster

pump installations and the construction of a pump stations as possible resolutions to the water pressure

issues. Town Administrator Andrew Sheehan advised they are meeting with Danvers on another issue

and he will bring it up with Danvers at that time.

DPW Superintendent Bob LaBossiere asked the Board for direction, so he can get the capital
budgeting/bidding process started. Cresta suggested that LaBossiere look into the Town providing
individual booster pumps to the effected residents, and installing a third hydrant. Cresta advised the
residents that the Board will keep in touch with them with updates on the process.

On a MOTION made by Houten, second by Moreschi, the Board ofSelectmen VOTED unanimously
to direct the DPW Superintendent to prepare bid documents for individual booster pumps to the
residents who want them.

9:17 PM ADJOURN
With no further business, on a MOTION made by Houten, the Board of Selectmen

VOTED unanimously to adjourn at 9:17 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

7^
Minutes Secretary Kosta Prentakis, Clerk

Documents either distributed to the Board of Selectmen before the meeting in a packet or at the

meeting:

1. Agenda:January 16,2018

2. Town of Middleton Summary of Weekly Bills Payable and Payroll Warrants, 1/18/18, #1815

Middleton Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes

January 16, 2018 Page 3



3. Minutes: 1/2/18
4. Letter from Council on Aging to Board of Selectmen, Re: Alternates to COA Board of Directors,

12/13/17
5. E-Mail from Wendy Tirck to COA, Re: COA Board, 11/27/17
6. E-Mail from Ellen Strobel to COA, Re: Alternate for MCOA, 11/21/17
7. Letter from Council on Aging to Board of Selectmen, Re: Middleton Food Bank Donation/NEFP

Inc., 1/2/18
8. Letter from Weston & Sampson to Middleton DPW, Re: Lakeview Avenue Water Pressure Study

-Middleton/MA, 12/15/17

9. Hydrant Test Report, Weston & Sampson Engineers, Inc. 11/2/17

10. Photo: Homes Experience Low Pressures, Google Earth

11. Weston & Sampson: Typical 1-lnch Residential Water Pressure Booster System

12. Letter from xfinity to Board of Selectmen, Re: Comcast Government Relations - Contact Change,

12/27/17
13. Letter from Verizon to Board of Selectmen, Re: Cable Television Final License Granted to Verizon

New England Inc. (the "Final License"), 1/10/18
14. E-Mail from Catherine Lindquist to Town Administrator, Re: Incident regarding a dog attack @

my home, 1/12/18

Middleton Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes

January 16, 2018 Page 4



MANN & MANN, P.C.
COUNSELLORS AT LAW

JlLL ELMSTROM MANN+*

KURTP.MANN+*
MELISSA GNOZA OGDEN+

fAdmitted to practice in Massachusetts
•Admitted to practice in New York

January 12,2018

VIA HAND DELIVERY

Middleton Board ofSelectmen

Attention: Andrew Sheehan, Town Administrator

48 South Main Street

Middleton,MA 01949

RE: Street Acceptance - Ohlson Way, Middleton

Philip Colosi and Joanne Colosi as Trustees of PC Development Realty Trust - Developer

Dear Members of the Board:

Pursuant to my letter of December 19, 2017 in connection with the above-referenced matter,

enclosed please find As-Built/Street Acceptance Plans prepared by Williams & Sparages, a

Massachusetts Registered Professional Engineer and Professional Land Surveyor, showing the

Ohlson Way and all utilities, public and private, above and below grade, and in compliance with

the other requirements of the Subdivision Rules and Regulations. Three (3) copies of which shall

be provided to the Board in mid to late January.

Very truly yours,
.-.--/ . ,

S-,A /..".. .::'>7 ^....: .... ^.,,J
/?'-'i"'-" - •' • ^•••••••"— ^''-""

Jill'Elmstrom Mann

Enclosures

ec: Robert LaBossiere, Public Works Superintendent

Katrina O'Leary Planning Coordinator

Philip and Joanne Colosi

S:\Colosi 2015-29- Ohlson Way\2 017 St acceptance -\ltr to Town (1-12-18) (with plans).docx

191 South Main Street, Suite 104 Direct Email: jill@mamipc.com

Middleton, Massachusetts 01949 kurt@niaru-ipc.com

Telephone: 978-762-6238 melissa@mamipc.com

Facsimile: 978-762-6434

2

mcreasi
Highlight



COUNSELLORS AT LAW
JJLL ELMSTROM MANN+*

KURTP.MANN+*
MELISSA GNOZA OGDEN+

fAdmitted to practice in Massachusetts
*Admitted to practice in New York

December 19, 2017

Middleton Board ofSelectmen

Attention: Andrew Sheehan/ Town Administrator

48 South Main Street

Middleton/MA 01949

RE: Street Acceptance - Ohlson Way, Middleton

Philip Colosi and Joanne Colosi as Trustees of PC Development Realty Trust - Developer

Dear Members of the Board:

Please be advised that the undersigned is legal counsel for Philip Colosi and Joanne Colosi as

Trustees of PC Development Realty Trust, the developer (the "Developer") of the residential

subdivision known as Ohtson Way (the "Subdivision") the details of which are set forth on the

plans approved by the Planning Board and entitled "Definitive Plan, Ohlson Way" dated June

21, 2013 and revised through January 1, 2014 and recorded with Essex South District Registry of

Deeds in Plan Book 442, Plan 95 (the "Approved Plans"). In my capacity as local land use

counsel, the Developer has asked me to assist in securing the laying out and acceptance of

Ohlson Way as a public way by the Town of Middleton.

In furtherance of the following, the Developer provides the Town with the following:

1. Title Certification: A title certification running to the benefit of the Town confirming the

right and title of the Developer to convey the fee interest in Ohlson Way and the

drainage and sight distance easements to the Town. Three (3) copies of which are

attached as Exhibit A.

2. Copies of Deeds and Other Instruments: Copies of the deed into the Developer and

copies of all the deeds from the Developer for each of the lots in the Subdivision. Three

(3) copies of which are attached as Exhibit B.

3. As-Built/Street Acceptance Plans: To be prepared by Williams & Sparages, a

Massachusetts Registered Professional Engineer and Professional Land Surveyor,

showing the Ohlson Way and all utilities, public and private, above and below grade,

and in compliance with the other requirements of the Subdivision Rules and

Regulations. Three (3) copies of which shall be provided to the Board in mid to late

January.

S:\Colosi 2015-29- Olilson Way\2017 St acceptance -\ltr to Town.docx

191 South Main Street, Suite 104

Middleton, Massachusetts 01949

Telephone: 978-762-6238

Facsimile: 978-762-6434

Direct Email: nll@maru-tpc.com

kurt@niann.pc.com

nielissa@mannpc.com



Re: Street Acceptance

PC Development Realty Trust

Page 2

4. Definitive Subdivision Plans: These plans contain a sufficient description of the roadway

and easement such that additional legal descriptions are not necessary. Three (3)

copies of which are attached as Exhibit C.

5. Draft Warrant Article and Copy of Proposed Deed to the Town with all easements noted

therein. Three (3) copies of which are attached as Exhibit D.

Please place this matter for discussion on the agenda of the Selectmen's next regular meeting.

Your kind attention is greatly appreciated.

y'ery^r.uly yours, ^~/

}/,^///.^^^ '^^y"'yy^
Jill/ElmstromMann ^ CJ^t

Enclosures

ec: Robert LaBossiere, Public Works Superintendent

Katrina O'Leary Planning Coordinator

Philip and Joanne Colosi



MANN & MANN, P.C.
COUNSELLORS AT LAW

JlLL ELMSTROM MANNt*
KURTP.MANNt*

MELISSA GNOZA OGDEN+

fAdmitted to practice in Massachusetts
*Admitted to practice in New York

January 11,2018

Middleton Board ofSelectmen
Attention: Andrew Sheehan, Town Administrator
48 South Main Street

Middleton, MA 01949

RE: Naming of Subdivision Roadway, Beech Brook Farm, [161 Essex Street) Middleton

Dear Mr. Sheehan:

On January 10,2018,Beech Brook Farm LLC [the "Petitioner"^ applied for and received
definitive subdivision approval from the Middleton Planning Board which authorized the
subdivision of a 5.8 acre parcel of land, identified as 161 Essex Street, into a four (4] lot
residential subdivision with a subdivision roadway providing access to Essex Street [the
"Roadway"]. Final approval will be issued and the definitive subdivision plans [the
"Plans"] will be endorsed by the Planning Board at their next meeting, which will be held on

February 14,2018. A copy of the approved Plans is attached hereto. Pursuant to the Town
Charter, Ch. 250-9A.[3)(c), before the Planning Board endorses the Plans, the Petitioner is
required to appear before the Board of Selectmen to request the Selectmen's approval of a
street name for the Roadway. In satisfaction of the requirement, the undersigned, on

behalf of the Petitioner respectfully suggests that the name "Beech Brook Lane" would be

an appropriate name for the Roadway and would pay homage to the old homestead and its

prior occupants.

Please place this matter on the agenda of the Board's next regularly scheduled meeting.

Thank you for your kind consideration.

Sincerely,
MANN & MANN, P.C.

a />fi^iir-w L.- i%(-^

End. Plans

Cc: Beech Brook Farm LLC
[Nick Hantzis and John Walsh)

Williams & Sparages [Chris Sparages)
Katrina O'Leary, Town Planner

191 South Main Street, Suite 104

Middleton, Massachusetts 01949

Telephone: 978-762-6238

Facsimile: 978-762-6434

Direct Email: iUl@ni.annpc.coin

kurt@mannpc,CQm

melissa@mannpc.coin

3

mcreasi
Highlight



CERTIFICATION ON T

3Y CERTin- THAT THE NOTICE Of APPROVAL OF THIS PLAN BV
'LANNING BOARD HAS SEEN RECEIVED AND RECORDCD AT THIS
E AND THAT NO APPEAL WAS RECEIVED DURING THE TWENTV
NEXT AFTER SUCH RECEIPT AND KLCQRDING OF SA!D HOTICE.

ESSEX STR£CF
rwsr

ASSESSORS MAP W LOT 3VC

ESSEX STREET
(PUBLIC - VARIABLE WIDTH)

THE NTENANCI: OF THE LANDSCAPED IStANDS THEY ARE AOJACENr TO,

6. W BUILDING PERhilT SKALL BE ISSUED FOR AMY LOT IN THE SUEJDMSION
UNTIL THE BINDER COURaE OF THE SITUMINOUS CONCRETE ROADWAY SURFACE
HAS SKEhl INSPECTED BY THE SL'PERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC WORKS OR
AUTHORISED AGFNT, AND HIS RF.CQMMENDATION TO APPROVE THE BINDER
COURSE 13 APPROVED AND ACCEPTED BY THL PLANNING SOARD.

II

1.SECTION 250-10.B(7)(o) WHICH REQUIRES EASEMENTS TO BE A MINIMUM OF 30
FEET WIDE-, AND, IN PLACE THEREOF. ALLOW TEMPORARY SLOPE; EASEMENTS LESS
THAN 30 FEET WIDE AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS,

2.APPENDIX IX, WHICH REI
FEE1 APART ALONG THE
TOO TREES PER LOT.

3.SECTIOM 250-10.B(G) WH!CH SHOWS SIDEWALKS ON BOTH SIDES OF THE

LOW PROFILES.

5.SECTION 250-9.A(3)(o) WHICH REQUIRES SUITABLE SPACE TO RECORD TH:
ACTION OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH, AND, IN PLACE THEREOF, NOT RTOLJIRE THE
ACTION OF THE BOARD TO BE PLACED ON THE PW.

>, w pmcE

7.APPENDIX I.A(5) WHICH REQUIRES CURBING, AND. IN PLACE THEREOF. PFRMIT NO

THE RIGHT OF WAY.

ZONING DISTRICT: R1b

MINIMUM 10T FRONTAGE = 125 FEET

IINIMUU LOT WIDTH TO BUILDING = 33.75 FEEJ
?D SETBACK- 25 FEET (OR 50 FEET TO CDiTERLlNE)

REAR YARD SFTBACK s 30 FEET

LEGEND_OF ABBREVIATIONS

DRILL HOLE
IR - IRON WO

DENOTES A GRANITE STONE BOUHD
WITH A DRILL HOLE TO BE: 5CT SY
THE OWNER UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

SLL /i HEREWI-

STREET LIGHTS TO BE INSTALLED PER MIDDI.ETOH ELECTRIC L

GO'/ERNING ThlE EUBniVISION OF LAND.

PLAN SET INDEX
SHEET 1: DEFINITIVE PLAN
SHEET 2: PLAN & PROFILE
SHEET 3: TOPOGRAPH1C PLAN
SHEETS 4&5: DETAILS

VEMENT WIDTH/LOT UNES

Ct-is-Ztit}

DEFINITIVE PLAN
BEECH BROOK FARM

MIDDLETON, MA

IDEXD RET- BOOK 3G218 PftGE ^
PIAN BOOK W3 PLAN 24

[ASSESSORS REF: MAP 10 LOT 31

NOVEMBER 10,2017

WILLIAMS
SPARAGES

DEFINITIVE SHEET 1 OF 1
SHEFT1 OF 5



CLERKS CERTIFICATION ON THE

CLERK OF THE TOWN OF MIDDLETON, D;
HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE NOTICE OF APPROVAL OF THIS PLAN BY
THE PLANNING 60ARO MAS BEEN RECEIVED AND RECORDED AT THIS
OFRC1: AND THAT NO APPEAL WAS RECEIVED OURING THE TWEr-TTY
GAYS NOT Arrm SUCH RECEIPT AND RECORDING or SAID NOTICE:.

'ps II

0+00 CH-50 1+00 1+50 2+00 2.1.50

s" s
'is s

s
ROAD A ^ s sy

3 3 G
g I H s

sy-a^J^ -Y-<»usig , ,/r w m oo \

•"S^ »-*_, ,_| J-^'S ^^ .SS.

TYPICAL ROADWAY SECTION
(MOT TO SCAI E)

WiLLIAMS & SPARAGES LLC

ZONING DISTRICT: R11

25 FEET (OR 50 FEET TO CENTERUNE)
SIDE YARD SFTBACK = 30 FED-
REAR YARD SETBACK = .10 FEET

LEGEND OF ABBREVIATIONS

DH - DRILL HOLE

(FHD) - FOUND

DEN01ES AN IRON PIPE TO BE SD

DENOTES A GRANITE STONE BOUND

THE OWNER UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. \\-\tc-\a'l

ADDITIONAL TESTHOL

"DEFINITIVE PLAN & PROFILE
ROAD A

MIDDLFTON, MA

IDEED REF: BOOK 3G21G PAGE 7:1
••LAN REF. PI^N BOOK 403 PLAN V

IASEESSORS REF: MAP ID LOT 31

"^-«((&

SCALE: 1 "=40' (HOR) & 4'(VERT1

NOVEMBER 10,2017

WILLIAMS
SPARAGES

T
5

PROFILE SHEET I OF 1
SHECT20F5



BROOK

::RTiFY THAT I HAVE CONFORMED
FH£ RULES AND REGULATIONS

THE REGISTERS OF DEEDS IN

WILLIAMS & SPARAGES LLC

CLERKS CERTIFICATION ON T

CLERK OF THE TOWN OF MIGDLETON, DO

ZONING DISTRICT: R1b

MINIMUM LOT FRONTAGE = 125 FEET
MINIMUM LOT WIDTH THROUGH BUILDING = 1 6!i FEET

MINIMUM LOT WIDTH TO BUILDING - 33.75 FEET
FRONT YARD SEJ8AGK= 25 FEET (OR 50 FEET TO CENTERLINQ

LEGEND OF ABBREVIATIONS

DH - DRILL HOLE
!R - iROH ROD

- DENOTES A GRANITE STONE BOUND
SET Sf

THE OWNER UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

PAYMENT WIDTH/LOTLIi

NO. | REVISION

TOPOGRAPHIC PLAN
BEECH BROOK FARM

MIDDLETON, MA

IEDFORD, MA 021°

PLAN B(

NOVEMBER 10, 20V,

WILLIAMS

5
TOPO SHEET 1 OF 1

SHEET 3 OF 5



PKREWIALS, SHRUBS, AND (if CONDITIONS PEffMIT)
UNDERSTOFtY TR££S MAT CAH TOLERATE INTERMITTENT

OCCATtOWL SAU? COWIWNS DUE TO ROAD
SALT. AND EXTENDED DRY PERIODS.

INSTALL ONE TREE OR SHRW PER SO 50. FEET OF
BIOREWWN ARIM. AW AT LEAST J SPECIES OF EACH

OF HERBACCOUS PERL'WIALS OR SHRUBS.

CL"t

__._QBS^

SWMA2P
RAIN GARDEN/BIORETENTION CELL

(HOT TO RCALE)

SHALL SL~ A WX OF HERBACEOUS
7NMALS. SHRUBS, WD (IF CONDiriONS PERMIT)

WDEffSTORf TREES WAT CAH TOLERATE IWEHWTTWT
mONAI SAUN£ COHOITIOHS DUC TO ROAD

PERIODS.

TREE OR SHRUB PER 50 SO. F££T OF
810R£r£NT!ON AK£A, AND AT LCAST

OF HERSACEOUS PEREWIALS OR SHRUBS.

.^-1.1"" •" SEE°

6" FHTER LAYER

£L "SO.GO

SWMA4P
RAIN GARDEN/BIORETENTION CELL

CLE-RKS CERTIF-ICATtON ON THE PLAN

DATE' _____„______
CLERK OF THE TOWN OF MIDDLETON, DC

ERFBY CERTIPr- THAT THE NOriCE; OF APPROVAL OF THIS PLAN BY
PLANNING BOARD HAS BEEN RETCEIVED ANO FiECOTOED AT THIS

FFICE AND THAI NO APPEAL WAS RECEIVED DURING THE TWENFr-
WS NDiT AFTER SUCH RECEIPT AND RECORDING OF SAID NOIICE.

I CERTIFY THAT I HAVE COKFORklCD
WITH THE RULES AND RCCULATONS
OF- THE REGISTERS OF DEEDS IN
PREPARING THIS PLHN,

WILLIAMS & SPARACCS LLC

00 J_-~0 ^ ,;^^«
2 1/2" HMKR

nw.y__ ,,_y_i „- cam ersr
CONDUITS

CUL-DE-SAC SECTION
(N0[ TO SCAI.'.)

RiPRAP SHALL HAVE
A dm-S" AND SHALL

BE 9" THICK

SWMA2P
EMERGENCY SPILLWAY CONSTRUCTION

(N01 TO SCALE)

-£»i
OF BERM

ATION=82.5U

^
SHALL HAVE

AND SHALL

ELE

s
VATION^

^
82.25^

SWMA4P
EMERGENCY SPILLWAY CONSTRUCTION

(NOT TO SCAUT)

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS
BEECH BROOK FARM

MIDDLETON, MA

[DEED REF: BOOK 3G21B PACE 73
PUN BOOK 403 PLAN 2

[ASSESSORS KEF; MAP 10 LOT 31

SCALE; AS SHOWN

NOVEMBER 10. 2017

1
'w-^K& WILLIAMS

SPARAGES

T
s

DETAIL SHEET! OF 2
SHEET 4 OF 5



TYPICAL FIRE HYDRANT

OR LOW SERVICE LINE
DETAIL

INISHL-D STHEET CRADE-

CONCRETE THRUST BLOCK TO BE USED
iEAR ON UNUtSTURGED EAnTH.

""•-"""

^ITT-ST-^

PROVIDE K CUBIC YARD OF
SELECTED 2" STONE - TO 6"
ABOVE HYO RANT DRAIN

UNDERDRAIN
DETAIL

(NOr TO SCALE)

I CERTIFY THAT I HAV1; CONFORMED

OF THE REGISTERS OF OF-EDS IN
PREPARING THIS PW:

WILLIAMS & SPARAGELS LLC

THREE nMES WIDTH OF FtOOTBAt.L

DECIDUOUS TREE
PLANTING

DETAIL
(N01 10 SCALE)

jhf^iww

i,?//?y&Kl•IS
BBi^

^tel!:^/

GRANITE BOUND
DETAIL

CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE
(NO'I 10 SCALC)

POST TOP LAMP
DETAIL

(NOT TO ycALE)
|!|—<.-'s- cu.

WATTAGE -

DtSTRiBUTION = TrPE HI

COMPOSITE LIGHT POLE
DETAIL

ILTER FABRIC AS SPECinCO

SILTFENCE W/SILT
"SOXX" DETAIL

(NOT ro SCALE)

CLCFtKS CERTIFICATION ON THE- PLAN

CLERK OF THE TOWN OF MIDDLETON. DO
HEREBY CERTtPT THAT THE NOTICE OF APPROVAL OF THIS PLAN BY
THE PLAMMING BOARD HAS BEEN RECEIVED AND RECORDED AT THIS
OFFICE AND THAT NO APPEAL WAS RECEIVED DURING THE TWENTY
DAYS NEXT AFTER SUCH RECEIPT AND RECORDING OF SAID NOTICE.

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS
BEECH BROOK FARM

MIDDLETON, MA

IDEED REF' BOOK .16218 PAGE 73
[PLAN REF: PLAN BOOK 403 PLAN 1
[ASSESSORS REF: MAP 10 LOT 31

SCALE: AS SHOWN

NOVEMBER 10,2017

DETAIL SHEET 2 OF 2

SHEET 5 OF 5



^
W

!W
l^

»
^

U
d

.,
..
L

 »
 .

' 
i^

w
"
y
w

s
ii

'w
(!

^
»
^

^
^

i^
 •

';
'"

 '
•

s



ANKELES, VONTZALIDES, AMBELIOTIS SB DELANEY, LLP

Willowdale Office Condominium
Unit 101

246 Andover Street
Peabody, Massachusetts 01960-5489

Telephone 978-531-7000 x-236
ATHAN A. VONTZAL1DES HARRY ANKELES
NICHOLAS M. AMBELIOTIS „ ,„ . . „ „„„ „„„ „.„„ (1958-1990)

Real Estate Fax 978-538-0152 MARSHALL E. HA'RMON
(RETIRED)

DAVID L. ANKELES*
WILLIAM F. DELANEY*

S^RKSEEENFAEULT. E-Mail: david@avdalaw.com

*ofCounsei Web Site: www.avdalaw.com

November 15, 2017

Middleton Board of Selectmen
Town HaU
48 South Main Street

Middleton, MA 01949

Re: Roadway Acceptance Petition - Zaloga Way

Dear Board Members;

Ryebrooke, LLC hereby petitions the Selectmen to lay out Zaloga Way as Town ways in
accordance with M.G.L. ch. 82, sections 21-24, and place on the Warrant of the 2018 Annual
Town Meeting Articles to accept Zaloga Way as a public way. Submitted with the Petition,

please find three (3) copies, plus plan mylars, of the following as required under the Middleton
Roadway Acceptance Procedures.

a. Title Certification

b. Deed into Petitioner and Deeds out of each lot on Zaloga Way;

c. Proposed Deed and Grant of Easements;
d. As'Built Plans;

e. Roadway Acceptance Plan with metes and bounds of roadway and easement areas
(Layout Plan);

f. Legal Description of road and easement areas which are legibly shown on the Roadway

Acceptance Plan (Layout Plan);
g. Draft Warrant Article.

h. Copy of Deed delivered to Essex County Greenbelt.

The Petitioner understands that this filing is being made at least 120 days prior to Town

Meeting, and requests that this Petition be placed on the May 2018 Town Meeting Warrant.

4

mcreasi
Highlight



ANKELES, VONTZALIDES, AMBELIOTIS 65
DELANEY, LLP

On behalf of Ryebrooke, LLC, thank you for your consideration.

Very tmly^yop-^,.

DLA/jos
Enclosures



Town of Middleton
Fiscal Year 2018

Operating and Maintenance

Sewer Rate From SESD Billings

Board ofSelectmen's Meeting -1/30/2018

Sewer Enterprise Fund Expenses

1. South Essex Sewer District Operating and Maintenance

Charges Billed To Middleton For Fiscal Year 2018

2. Billing expenses including collections, receivables, and all

associated accounting

3. Reserve for bad debt (losses) = 5% of total billable expenses

Total Sewer Enterprise Expenses =

Less any Deductions for State Grants to Reduce Sewer Use Charges

Net Total Sewer Enterprise Fund Expenses =

Recommended Sewer Rate = Total Expenses $

Total Sewer Flow

Approved by Board ofSelectmen

97,446

6,257,355 cubic feet

Amount

$ 87,463

$

A^

$

$

_$

$1

5,343

4,640

97,446

97,446

0.01557 pI
[per hundred

-56-

cubic feet

Brian Cresta, Chairman Kosta Prentakis

Rick Kassiotis Todd Moreschi

Timothy Houten AndrewSheehan

Town Administrator Date:

6

mcreasi
Highlight



South Essex Sewer District - Middleton Flow Changes From Fiscal Year 2016 to 2017
Fiscal Year 2018 Account Bills and Variance Detail

ACCOUNTS LOCATION TOTAL TOTAL FY17
FLOW FLOW , BIU.ED
2016 2017 AMOUNT

(Cubic Feet) (Cubic Feet)

FV18
BILLED

AMOUNT

$ Change
From

FY17toFY18

% Change
From

FY17toFY18

VARIANCE DETAIL

0021 A-0000-15003

0021 A-0000-15004

0021 A-0000-15005

021-A-0000-15006

0021 A-0000-15007

0021 A-0000-15008

0021 A-0000-15009

0021 A-0000-15001

0021-0000-0012 A

0021-0000-0012 A

0020-0000-0016 D

0020-0000-0016 E

CALLAWAY DR

CALLAWAY DR

CALLAWAY DR

CALLAWAY DR

CALLAWAY DR

CALLAWAY DR

CALLAWAY DR

CALLAWAY DR

COUNTRY CLUB LN

COUNTRY CLUB LANE

LOCUST ST

LOCUSTST

8,807

9,360

4,984

9,336

5,560

3,624

5,227

7,486

45,483

79,570

13,172

15,670

8,139

6,800

6,335

11,373

6,399

2,990

5,743

6,328

45,603

76,990

13,059

14,531

$140.77

$149.60

$79.66

$149.22

$88.86

$57.92

$83.55

$119.65

$726.96

$1,271.78

$210.53

$250.45

$126.74

$105.89

$98.65

$177.10

$99.64

$46.56

$89.43

$98.55

$710.18

$1,198.96

$203.36

$226.29

($14.03)

($43.71)

$18.99

$27.89

$10.78

($11.35)

$5.89

($21.10)

($16.78)

($72.81)

($7.17)

($24.17)

-9.96%

-29.22%

23.84%

18.69%

12.14%

-19.60%

7.05%

-17.63%

-2.31%

-5.73%

-3.41%

-9.65%

A wire had broken and Danvers wasn't getting any reads. They fixed

the Meter and the customer was billed in December.

The customer had lots of water running from a leak from 9/17 - 9/19.

It was fixed on 9/19.

Water running sporadically. Phone ff out of order, Danvers unable to

contact. Checked with MELD and electric usage has steadily increased

as well.

Review of the usage confirms same usage pattern as last year.

Review of the usage confirms same usage pattern as last year.

0020-0000-0016 F LOCUSTST

Danvers has tried to contact owner but cannot reach them. The owner

was watering 2xs a day plus water running 24/7 in the summer. The

11,683 61,677 $186.73 $960.50 $773.76 414.37% homeower does not pay water bill from Danvers or flow and

construction from us. They typically lien all bills onto thier real estate

bill at year end.

0020-0000-0016 G

0021-0000-0009 K

0021-0000-0009 J

0021-0000-0009 H

0021-0000-0009 G

0021-0000-0009 D

0021-0000-0009 C

0021-0000-0009 B

LOCUSTST

LOCUSTST

LOCUST ST

LOCUSTST

LOCUST ST

LOCUST ST

LOCUST ST

LOCUST ST

15,543

10,293

6,916

7,276

6,906

7,487

3,410

9,329

16,431

9,868

7,521

6,638

6,006

8,490

2,180

9,805

$248.42

$164.51

$110.53

$116.29

$110.38

$119.67

$54.51

$149.11

$255.88

$153.68

$117.13

$103.37

$93.54

$132.21

$33.95

$152.70

$0.00

$7.45

($10.83)

$6.60

($12.92)

($16.84)

$12.55

($20.56)

$3.59

$0.00

3.00%

-6.58%

5.97%

-11.11%

-15.26% Review of the usage confirms same usage pattern as last year.

10.48%

Meter was stuck from 12/24/16-7/7/2017. Danvers skipped billing.

Fixed now.

2.41%



South Essex Sewer District - Middleton Flow Changes From Fiscal Year 2016 to 2017

Fiscal Year 2018 Account Bills and Variance Detail

ACCOUNTS

I

0021-0000-0009 A

0021.0000-0010 A

0021-0000-0010 B

0021-0000-0010 D

0021-0000-0010 C

0021-0000-0010 F

0021-0000-0010 E

0021-0000-0010 H

0021-0000-0010 J

0021-0000-0010 G

0021-0000-0010 K

0021-0000-0010 L

0021-0000-0010 M

0021-0000-0009 F

0021-0000-0009 E

0021-0000-0010 N

0021-0000-0010 Q

0021-0000-0010 P

0021-0000-0010 S

0021-0000-0010 R

0021-0000-0010 V

0021-0000-0010 T

LOCATION

MANSFIELD RD

MANSFIELD RD

MANSFIELD RD

MANSFIELD RD

MANSFIELD RD

MANSFIELD RD

MANSFIELD RD

MANSFIELD RD

MANSFIELD RD

MANSFIELD RD

MANSFIELD RD

MANSFIELD RD

MANSFIELD RD

NICHOLS LN

NICHOLS LN

NICHOLS LN

NICHOLS LN

NICHOLS LN

NICHOLS LN

NICHOLSLN

NICHOLS LN

NICHOLS LN

TOTAL
FLOW -
2016

(Cubic Feet)

4,489

10,093

12,684

14,822

12,624

8,781

6,280

5,478

15,254

5,563

5,558

6,074

10,896

9,796

7,003

7,524

3,162

12,059

6,488

6,800

6,904

7,022

TOTAL
FLOW
2017

(Cubic Feet)

4,417

7,637

8,043

10,095

11,727

8,256

4,053

1,981

15,781

6,307

6,321

5,596

8,097

8,543

5,195

7,726

4,070

12,617

6,192

6,800

6,160

11,993

FY17
BILLED

AMOUNT

$71.74

$161.32

$202.73

$236.89

$201.77

$140.35

$100.38

$87.56

$243.81

$88.92

$88.83

$97.09

$174.15

$156.58

$111.93

$120.26

$50.54

$192.75

$103.69

$108.68

$110.35

$112.24

FY18
BILLED

AMOUNT

$68.79

$118.92

$125.25

$157.20

$182.62

$128.57

$63.11

$30.85

$245.76

$98.22

$98.43

$87.15

$126.10

$133.03

$80.90

$120.32

$63.38

$196.48

$96.43

$105.90

$95.93

$186.77

$ Change
From

FY17toF/18

($2.95)

($42.40)

($77.48)

($79.69)

($19.14)

($11.77)

($37.26)

($56.71)

$1.95

$9.30

$9.61

($9.94)

($48.05)

($23.54)

($31.03)

$0.06

$12.85

$3.74

($7.26)

($2.79)

($14.42)

$74.53

% Change
From

FY17 to FY18

-4.12%

-26.28%

-38.22%

-33.64%

-9.49%

-8.39%

-37.12%

-64.77%

0.80%

10.46%

10.81%

-10.23%

-27.59%

-15.04%

-27.72%

0.05%

25.42%

1.94%

-7.00%

-2.57%

-13.07%

66.41%

VARIANCE DETAIL

Review of the usage confirms same usage pattern as last year.

No use from 7/24-12/1. Danvers aware of the reduction is use. They

believe the homeowner was away.

Owner had water running constantly in Feb 2016. Leak was fixed by

customer last year.

Danvers check Meter Sense which showed decrease usage in Feb and

Oct. Confirmed with MELD that usage was way down during those

times. Owner probably away.

Danvers replaced the meter after customer would not answer call for

some time. Customer finally let them replace meter in November.

Decreased usage in the summer indicates they are not watering as

much as last year.

Change in ownership July 2016. New owner has reduced usage.

Review of the usage confirms same usage pattern as last year.

Meter was not working last year. Danvers fixed it on 3/17/17.

The customer had water running 24/7 for quite a while but fixed the

problem in October.



South Essex Sewer District - Middleton Flow Changes From Fiscal Year 2016 to 2017
Fiscal Year 2018 Account Bills and Variance Detail

ACCOUNTS LOCATION TOTAL TOTAL P/17
FLOW FLOW BILLED
2016 2017 AMOUNT

(Cubic Feet) (Cubic Feet)

FY18
BILLED

AMOUNT

$ Change
From

FY17 to FY18

% Change

From
FY17 to FY18

VARIANCE DETAIL

0021-0000-0010 X

0021-0000-0010 W

0020-00000-0023

0020-00000-0023

0021-0000-0005

0021-0000-0012

0021-0000-0012

0021-0000-0014

0021-0000-0004

0021-0000-0004

0021-0000-0007

NICHOLS LN

NICHOLS LN

VILLAGE RD

VILLAGE RD

VILLAGE RD

VILLAGE RD

VILLAGE RD

FERNCROFT

FERNCROFT

FERNCROFT

LOCUST ST

LOCUST ST

LOCUST ST

LOCUST ST

LOCUST ST

LOCUST ST

11,968

6,731

143,001

56,685

472,349

387,987

361,789

1,106,282

1,730,649

1,010,260

122,424

10,645

8,823

55,736

63,632

427,750

391,120

354,891

1,099,609

1,784,726

1,462,540

97,374

$191.28

$107.58

$2,285.60

$906.00

$7,549.59

$6,201.23

$5,782.50

$17,681.78

$27,661.09

$16,147.05

$1,956.71

$165.77

$137.41

$867.98

$990.94

$6,661.37

$6,090.93

$0.00

$5,526.73

$0.00

$17,124.24

$27,793.61

$22,776.19

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$1,516.41

($25.51)

$29.83

($1,417.62)

$84.94

($888.22)

($110.30)

$0.00

($255.77)

$0.00

($557.54)

$132.52

$6,629.14

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

($440.30)

-13.33%

Last year increased by 58% due to problem in 2015. Usage has leveled

out.

Danvers DPW reviewed the meters and verified that the meters are

working properly.

9.37%

-11.77%

-1.78%

-4.42%

-3.15%

0.48%

Waterpark; Manager from CoCo Key called Danvers regarding the

41.05% increase in water bill. CoCo Key is currently looking for a leak and

working with Danvers to fix.

-22.50%

TOTAL 5,882,599 6,257,355 $94,022.00 $97,446.00



Ryan Ferrara

From: twnclerk2
Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2018 3:01 PM
To: Ryan Ferrara
Subject: NEW OPEN MEETING LAW REGULATIONS - EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 6, 2017
Attachments: Certificate of Receipt of Open Meeting Law Materials 10-6-17.pdf; Explanation of

Changesl 0-6-17.pdf; 2017-10-6 Guide with ed materials.pdf

Good Afternoon:

The Attorney General's Office has updated and issued new Open Meeting Law regulations, 940 CMR 29.00-

29.11. The new regulations will streamline, modernize, and clarify Open Meeting Law (OML) compliance
while simultaneously sustaining the law's spirit of transparency. Attached please find the Explanation of

Changes for the new regulations along with an updated Open Meeting Law Guide.

Below please find the links to the new Open Meeting Law Regulations for both the Clean Version and Red-

Lined Version:

https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2017/09/25/New%200ML%20Reeulations%20%28Clean%20version%
29j3df (Clean Version)

http_s://www.mass.eov/files/documents/2017/09/25/New%200ML%20Reeulations%20%28Red-
lined%20version%29.pdf (

All members of public bodies must complete the attached Certificate of Receipt of Open Meeting Law
Materials certifying that they have received these materials, and that they understand the requirements of the

Open Meeting Law and the consequences for violating it. All public body members should familiarize
themselves with the Open Meeting Law, Attorney General's regulations, and the Attorney General's Open

Meeting Law Guide. They are attached to this email.

I encourage you to submit the Certificate of Receipt of Open Meeting Law Materials as PDF documents via
email to the Town Clerk's Office at erika.ballard(%middletonma.gov. Signed copies of the Open Meeting Law

Receipt can be delivered to our office as well.

Lastly, we will be sending along additional information including model agendas to assist Boards &

Committees in drafting their Meeting Notices.

Please don't hesitate to contact our office should you need assistance.

Best,

J^l^e

Please note my email address is now

jlene.twiss@middletonma.gov

Ilene B. Twiss

Middleton Town Clerk

7

mcreasi
Highlight



CERTIFICATE OF RECEIPT OF OPEN MEETING LAW MATERIALS

_, who qualified as a member of the

(Name)

_, on _, certify pursuant
(Public Body) (Date)

to G.L. c. 30A, § 20(h) and 940 CMR 29.04, that I have received and reviewed copies of the

following Open Meeting Law materials:

1) the Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18-25;

2) the Attorney General's Regulations, 940 CMR 29.00-29.11;

3) the Attorney General's Open Meeting Law Guide, explaining the Open Meeting Law

and its application; and

4) if applicable, a copy of each Open Meeting Law determination issued by the

Attorney General within the last five (5) years to the public body of which I am a

member and in which the Attorney General found a violation of the Open Meeting

Law.

I have read and understand the requirements of the Open Meeting Law and the

consequences of violating it. I further understand that the materials I have received may be

revised or updated from time to time, and that I have a continuing obligation to implement any

changes to the Open Meeting Law during my term of office.

(Name)

(Name of Public Body)

(Date)

Pursuant to G.L. c. 30A, § 20(h), an executed copy of this certificate shall be retained, according to the

relevant records retention schedule, by the appointing authority, city or town clerk, or the executive

director or other appropriate administrator of a state or regional body, or their designee.



Explanations for the Attorney General's Revisions to
the Open Meeting Law Regulations, 940 CMR 29.00-29.11

September 25, 2017

The Attorney General has promulgated revisions to the Open Meeting Law regulations in an
effort to help members of public bodies and the public better understand the requirements of the
Open Meeting Law and to update the regulations to conform with guidance issued by the
Attorney General. These revisions become effective on October 6, 2017. Below is a summary
of the material revisions to each section of the regulations and an explanation of why the
revisions were made.

29.01: Purpose, Scope and Other General Provisions

There are no revisions to this section.

29.02: Definitions

A revision to this section removes the definition of the Open Meeting Law Advisory
Commission because the Commission is not otherwise referenced in these regulations, making

this definition unnecessary. This section also adds definitions for regional and county public
bodies to clarify their jurisdiction. State and local public body jurisdictions are generally
understood and thus are not defined here.

In the definition of intentional violation, a revision removes a phrase that offers a defense to the
imposition of an intentional violation where a public body reasonably relied on the advice of
counsel. Language describing a defense to the imposition of a fine where a public body
reasonably relied on the advice of counsel now appears in section 29.07, the section describing
penalties.

29.03: Notice Posting Requirements

A significant revision in this section removes the various alternative notice posting options for
local public bodies and offer a single alternative to the bulletin board: a website. Few, if any,
municipalities have adopted alternatives other than the municipal website. Another significant
revision clarifies that the chief executive officer of a municipality must make the decision to
adopt an alternative notice posting method for the municipality. The Attorney General has
received numerous requests from municipalities seeking guidance as to who has the authority to
adopt alternative notice posting methods. This language clarifies that authority.

The Attorney General often receives questions about the effect on meeting notices when a
website becomes unavailable for public bodies that have adopted a website for posting notices.
An addition here offers a balanced approach to give a public body or a municipality a short
window of time to restore website access before requiring public bodies to cancel their meetings
and post new notices.



Additional language requires the date and time that notices are amended to be recorded on or
with the notice, which conforms with guidance provided in the Attorney General's Open
Meeting Law determinations.

29.04: Certification

Most of the revisions here reorganize the section to make it easier to follow. A significant
revision requires that new public body members receive a copy of each determination by the
Attorney General that the public body violated the Open Meeting Law, over the prior five years.
This requirement will ensure that new public body members are aware of their public body's
history of compliance with the law and any orders that the Attorney General may have issued,
thus reducing the risk of repeat violations and intentional violations. Additional language offers
guidance in response to questions the Attorney General regularly receives regarding certification.

29.05: Complaints

A significant revision creates an option for public bodies to request mediation with a
complainant who has filed five or more complaints within the prior 12 months. This option is for
public bodies that respond to frequent complaints from the same complainants and may assist in
resolving ongoing conflicts. If the public body requests mediation and the complainant fails to
participate, then the Attorney General may decline to review the complaint.

Another revision clarifies that public bodies must meet to review Open Meeting Law complaints.
This requirement has been made clear in the Attorney General's determinations. Also, in this
section is a clarification that complainants must file complaints with the Attorney General within
90 days of an alleged violation or reasonable discovery of the alleged violation. Currently, the
regulations do not account for reasonable discovery. Finally, the changes remove language and

subsections that are not relevant, or are rarely, if ever, invoked.

29.06: Investigation

A revision in this section clarifies that, while the Attorney General will generally not disclose
information provided by the subject of a complaint in the course of an investigation, the Attorney
General may reveal such information in a written determination where necessary to resolve the

complaint. The Attorney General will continue to maintain the confidentiality of executive
session minutes and documents where the public body has not yet publicly released the executive
session minutes.

29.07: Resolution

The most significant revision in this section removes the requirement that the Attorney General
resolve complaints after a hearing before issuing orders of nullification and reinstatement of an
employee. This means that the Attorney General may order nullification of an action taken by a
public body in violation of the Open Meeting Law, or order the reinstatement of an employee,
without the necessity of a hearing before an administrative law judge. This allows the Attorney



General to issue such orders sooner, avoiding harm to those who rely on a public body's action
that would otherwise be nullified many months later. A public body still has the right to appeal
the Attorney General's order within 21 days.

Another revision clarifies that, while the Attorney General may fine a public body for an
intentional violation of the Open Meeting Law, a fine will not be imposed where the public body
acted in good faith compliance with advice of counsel. This is a requirement in the Open
Meeting Law itself.

A significant revision to this section requires public bodies that receive an order from the
Attorney General to certify in writing to the Attorney General its compliance with the order
within 30 days. Typical orders requiring written certification include approval and release of
meeting minutes and attendance at a training. No such certification is required for orders of
immediate and future compliance. This requirement will help the Attorney General ensure that
public bodies comply with her orders. This section also clarifies that the Attorney General does
not resolve complaints by telephone.

29.08: Advisory Opinions

The Attorney General has never invoked this section, and by policy, does not issue Open
Meeting Law advisory opinions. Rather, the Attorney General provides written guidance on
common concerns available on the Frequently Asked Questions pages at the Attorney General's
website. The update to this section reflects that practice.

29_.09;_ Other Enforcement Actions

There are no revisions to this section.

29.10: Remote Participation

The most significant revision to this section replaces the five permissible reasons for remote
participation with the sole requirement that, to participate in a meeting remotely, physical
attendance at the meeting be unreasonably difficult. This single standard should help public
body members and the public understand when it is appropriate to participate remotely. The five
permissible reasons currently provided in the regulations add another level of administration to
remote participation procedures. Another revision reflects a recently adopted amendment to the
Open Meeting Law that applies to local commissions on disability.

29.11: Meeting Minutes

This revision adds a new section describing public bodies' obligations to approve both open and
executive session meeting minutes. It also provides guidance by addressing the meaning of
"timely manner" for the approval of minutes. The Open Meeting Law requires public bodies to
approve meeting minutes in a timely manner. Public bodies that approve meeting minutes within
the next three meetings, or 30 days, whichever occurs latest, will have approved minutes in a
timely manner. While this timefmme is not a rigid requirement, as a public body may show



good cause for further delay, it should help encourage public bodies to develop a schedule for
prompt creation and approval of meeting minutes.



Open Meeting Law Guide

and Educational Materials

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL

MAURA HEALEY

OCTOBER 2017



TABLE OF

Contents

Open Meeting Law Guide

Overview................................................................................................................................................ 4

Certification...................................................................................................................................^

Meetings of Public Bodies...................................................................................................................... 5

What constitutes a public body?.................................................................................................... 5

What constitutes a deliberation?................................................................................................... 6

Notice..................................................................................................................................................... 8

Executive Session ................................................................................................................................. 10

The Ten Purposes for Executive Session ...................................................................................... 11

Remote Participation............................................................................................................................ 15

Public Participation............................................................................................................................... 17

Minutes................................................................................................................................................ 18

Open Session Meeting Records.................................................................................................... 18

Executive Session Meeting Records............................................................................................. 19

Open Meeting Law Complaints............................................................................................................ 20

What is the Open Meeting Law complaint procedure?............................................................... 20

Open Meeting Law Trainings................................................................................................................ 22

Contacting the Attorney General .........................................................................................................23

Appendix

The Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18-25 ..................................................................................... 25

940 CMR 29.00: Open Meeting Law Regulations................................................................................. 36

Certificate of Receipt of Open Meeting Law Materials,....................................................................... 48

2 I Page



Dear Massachusetts Residents:

One of the most important functions of the Attorney General's Office is to promote

openness and transparency in government. Every resident of Massachusetts should be able to

access and understand the reasoning behind the government policy decisions that affect our

lives. My office is working to achieve that goal through fair and consistent enforcement of the

Open Meeting Law, along with robust educational outreach about the law's requirements.

The Open Meeting Law requires that most meetings of public bodies be held in public,

and it establishes rules that public bodies must follow in the creation and maintenance of

records relating to those meetings. Our office is dedicated to providing educational materials,

outreach and training sessions to ensure that members of public bodies and citizens

understand their rights and responsibilities under the law.

Whether you are a town clerk or town manager, a member of a public body, or a

concerned citizen, I want to thank you for taking the time to understand the Open Meeting

Law. If you would like additional guidance on the law, I encourage you to contact my Division

of Open Government at (617) 963-2540 or visit our website at

www.mass.gov/ago/openmeeting for more information.

Sincerely,

^^4
<r^

Maura Healey

Massachusetts Attorney General

3 I Page



Attorney General's

Meeting Law

Overview

Purpose of the Law

The purpose of the Open Meeting Law is to ensure transparency in the deliberations on

which public policy is based. Because the democratic process depends on the public having

knowledge about the considerations underlying governmental action, the Open Meeting Law

requires, with some exceptions, that meetings of public bodies be open to the public. It also

seeks to balance the public's interest in witnessing the deliberations of public officials with the

government's need to manage its operations efficiently.

Attorney General's Authority

The Open Meeting Law was revised as part of the 2009 Ethics Reform Bill, and now

centralizes responsibility for statewide enforcement of the law in the Attorney General's Office.

G.L c. 30A, § 19(a). To help public bodies understand and comply with the law, the Attorney

General has created the Division of Open Government. The Division of Open Government

provides training, responds to inquiries, investigates complaints, and when necessary, makes

findings and orders remedial action to address violations of the law. The purpose of this Guide

is to inform elected and appointed members of public bodies, as well as the interested public,
of the basic requirements of the law.

Certification

Within two weeks of a member's election or appointment or the taking of the oath of

office, whichever occurs later, all members of public bodies must complete the attached

Certificate of Receipt of Open Meeting Law Materials certifying that they have received these

materials, and that they understand the requirements of the Open Meeting Law and the

consequences of violating it. The certification must be retained where the public body

maintains its official records. All public body members should familiarize themselves with the

Open Meeting Law, the Attorney General's regulations, this Guide, and Open Meeting Law

determinations issued to the member's public body within the last five years in which the

Attorney General found a violation of the law.

4 I P age



In the event a Certificate has not yet been completed by a presently serving member of

a public body, the member should complete and submit the Certificate at the earliest

opportunity to be considered in compliance with the law. A public body member must sign a

new Certificate upon reelection or reappointment to the public body but need not sign a

Certificate when joining a subcommittee.

Open Meeting Law Website

This Guide is intended to be a clear and concise explanation of the Open Meeting Law's

requirements. The complete law, as well as the Attorney General's regulations, training

materials, and determinations and declinations as to complaints can be found on the Attorney

General's Open Meeting website, www.mass.gov/ago/openmeeting. Members of public

bodies, other local and state government officials, and the public are encouraged to visit the

website regularly for updates on the law and the Attorney General's interpretations of it.

of Public

What meetings are covered by the Open Meeting Law?

With certain exceptions, all meetings of a public body must be open to the public. A

meeting is generally defined as "a deliberation by a public body with respect to any matter

within the body's jurisdiction." As explained more fully below, a deliberation is a

communication between or among members of a public body.

These four questions will help determine whether a communication constitutes a

meeting subject to the law:

1) is the communication between or among members of a public body;

2) if so,does the communication constitute a deliberation;

3) does the communication involve a matter within the body's jurisdiction; and

4) if so,does the communication fall within an exception listed in the law?

What constitutes a public body?

While there is no comprehensive list of public bodies, any multi-member board,

commission, committee or subcommittee within the executive or legislative branches1 of state

government, or within any county, district, city, region or town, if established to serve a public

purpose, is subject to the law. The law includes any multi-member body created to advise or

make recommendations to a public body, and also includes the governing board of any local

housing or redevelopment authority, and the governing board or body of any authority

established by the Legislature to serve a public purpose. The law excludes the Legislature and

Although the Legislature itself is not a public body subject to the Open Meeting Law, certain legislative

commissions must follow the Law's requirements.

5 I P age



its committees, bodies of the judicial branch, and bodies appointed by a constitutional officer

solely for the purpose of advising a constitutional officer.

Boards of selectmen and school committees (including those of charter schools) are

certainly subject to the Open Meeting Law, as are subcommittees of public bodies, regardless

of whether their role is decision-making or advisory. Individual government officials, such as a

town manager or police chief, and members of their staff are not subject to the law, and so

they may meet with one another to discuss public business without needing to comply with

Open Meeting Law requirements. This exception for individual officials to the general Open

Meeting Law does not apply where such officials are serving as members of a multiple-member

public body that is subject to the law.

Bodies appointed by a public official solely for the purpose of advising the official on a

decision that individual could make alone are not public bodies subject to the Open Meeting

Law. For example, a school superintendent appoints a five-member advisory body to assist her

in nominating candidates for school principal, a task the superintendent could perform herself.

That advisory body would not be subject to the Open Meeting Law.2

What constitutes a deliberation?

The Open Meeting Law defines deliberation as "an oral or written communication

through any medium, including electronic mail, between or among a quorum of a public body

on any public business within its jurisdiction." Distribution of a meeting agenda, scheduling or

procedural information, or reports or documents that may be discussed at a meeting is often

helpful to public body members when preparing for upcoming meetings. These types of
communications generally will not constitute deliberation, provided that, when these materials

are distributed, no member of the public body expresses an opinion on matters within the

body's jurisdiction. Additionally, certain communications that may otherwise be considered

deliberation are specifically exempt by statute from the definition of deliberation (for example,

discussion of the recess and continuance of a Town Meeting pursuant to G.L. c. 39, § 10A(a) is

not deliberation).

To be a deliberation, the communication must involve a quorum of the public body. A

quorum is usually a simple majority of the members of a public body. Thus, a communication

among less than a quorum of the members of a public body will not be a deliberation, unless

there are multiple communications among the members of the public body that together

constitute communication among a quorum of members. Courts have held that the Open

Meeting Law applies when members of a public body communicate in a serial manner in order

to evade the application of the law.

Note that the expression of an opinion on matters within the body's jurisdiction to a

quorum of a public body is a deliberation, even if no other public body member responds. For

' See Connelly v. School Committee of Hanover, 409 Mass. 232 (1991).

6 I P age



example, if a member of a public body sends an email to a quorum of a public body expressing

her opinion on a matter that could come before that body, this communication violates the law

even if none of the recipients responds.

What matters are within the jurisdiction of the public body?

The Open Meeting Law applies only to the discussion of any "matter within the body's

jurisdiction." The law does not specifically define "jurisdiction." As a general rule, any matter

of public business on which a quorum of the public body may make a decision or

recommendation is considered a matter within the jurisdiction of the public body. Certain

discussions regarding procedural or administrative matters may also relate to public business

within a body's jurisdiction, such as where the discussion involves the organization and

leadership of the public body, committee assignments, or rules or bylaws for the body.

Statements made for political purposes, such as where a public body's members characterize

their own past achievements, generally are not considered communications on public business

within the jurisdiction of the public body.

What are the exceptions to the definition of a meeting?

There are five exceptions to the definition of a meeting under the Open Meeting Law.

1. Members of a public body may conduct an on-site inspection of a project or program;

however, they may not deliberate at such gatherings;

2. Members of a public body may attend a conference, training program or event;

however, they may not deliberate at such gatherings;

3. Members of a public body may attend a meeting of another public body provided that

they communicate only by open participation; however, they may not deliberate at such

gatherings;
4. Meetings of quasi-judicial boards or commissions held solely to make decisions in an

adjudicatory proceeding are not subject to the Open Meeting Law; and

5. Town Meetings, which are subject to other legal requirements, are not governed by the

Open Meeting Law. See, e.g. G.L. c. 39, §§ 9, 10 (establishing procedures for Town

Meeting).

The Attorney General interprets the exemption for "quasi-judicial boards or

commissions" to apply only to certain state "quasi-judicial" bodies and a very limited number of

public bodies at other levels of government whose proceedings are specifically defined as

"agencies" for purposes of G.L. c. 30A.

We have received several inquiries about the exception for Town Meeting and whether

it applies to meetings outside of a Town Meeting session by Town Meeting members or Town

Meeting committees or to deliberation by members of a public body - such as a board of

selectmen - during a session of Town Meeting. The Attorney General interprets this exemption

to mean that the Open Meeting Law does not reach any aspect of Town Meeting. Therefore,

7 I P age



the Attorney General will not investigate complaints alleging violations in these

situations. Note, however, that this is a matter of interpretation and future Attorneys General

may choose to apply the law in such situations.

Notice

What are the requirements for posting notice of meetings?

Except in cases of emergency, a public body must provide the public with notice of its

meeting 48 hours in advance, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays. Notice of

emergency meetings must be posted as soon as reasonably possible prior to the meeting. Also

note that other laws, such as those governing procedures for public hearings, may require

additional notice.

What are the requirements for filing and posting meeting notices for local public bodies?

For local public bodies, meeting notices must be filed with the municipal clerk with

enough time to permit posting of the notice at least 48 hours in advance of the public meeting.

Notices may be posted on a bulletin board, in a loose-leaf binder, or on an electronic display

(e.g. television, computer monitor, or an electronic bulletin board), provided that the notice is

conspicuously visible to the public at all hours in, on, or nearthe municipal building in which the

clerk's office is located. In the event that meeting notices posted in the municipal building are

not visible to the public at all hours, then the municipality must either post notices on the

outside of the building or adopt the municipal website as the official method of notice posting.

Prior to utilizing the municipal website, the Chief Executive Officer of the municipality

must authorize or vote to adopt such website as the official method of posting notice. The

clerk of the municipality must inform the Division of Open Government of its notice posting

method and must inform the Division of any future changes to that posting method. Public

bodies must consistently use the most current notice posting method on file with the Division.

A description of the website, including directions on how to locate notices on the website, must

also be posted on or adjacent to the main and handicapped accessible entrances to the building

where the clerk's office is located. Note that meeting notices must still be available in or

around the clerk's office so that members of the public may view the notices during normal

business hours.

What are the requirements for posting notices for regional, district, county and state public

bodies?

For regional or district public bodies and regional school districts, meeting notices must

be filed and posted in the same manner required of local public bodies in each of the

communities within the region or district. As an alternative method of notice, a regional or

8 | Page



district public body may post a meeting notice on the regional or district public body's website.

The regional school district committee must file and post notice of the website address, as well

as directions on how to locate notices on the website, in each city and town within the region

or district. A copy of the notice must be filed and kept by the chair of the public bodyorthe

chair's designee.

County public bodies must file meeting notices in the office of the county

commissioners and post notice of the meeting in a manner conspicuously visible to the public

at all hours at a place or places designated by the county commissioners for notice postings. As

an alternative method of notice, a county public body may post notice of meetings on the

county public body's website. The county public body must file and post notice of the website

address, as well as directions on how to locate notices on the website, in the office of the

county commissioners. A copy of the notice shall be filed and kept by the chair of the county

public body or the chair's designee.

State public bodies must post meeting notices on the website of the public body or its

parent agency. The chair of a state public body must notify the Attorney General in writing of

the specific webpage location where notices will be posted and of any subsequent changes to

that posting location. A copy of each meeting notice must also be sent to the Secretary of

State's Regulations Division and should be forwarded to the Executive Office of Administration

and Finance, which maintains a listing of state public body meetings.

Where a public body adopts a website as the official method of posting notices, it must

make every effort to ensure that the website is accessible at all hours. If a website becomes

inaccessible within 48 hours of a meeting, not including Saturdays, Sundays or legal holidays,

the website must be restored within six business hours of the discovery. If the website is not

restored within six business hours, the public body must re-post notice of its meeting to

another date and time, in accordance with the requirements of the Open Meeting Law.

A note about accessibility

Public bodies are subject to all applicable state and federal laws that govern accessibility

for persons with disabilities. These laws include the Americans with Disabilities Act, the federal

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and state constitutional provisions. For instance, public bodies that

adopt website posting as an alternative method of notice must ensure that the website is

readily accessible to people with disabilities, including individuals who use screen readers. All

open meetings of public bodies must be accessible to persons with disabilities. Meeting

locations must be accessible by wheelchair, without the need for special assistance. Also sign

language interpreters for deaf or hearing-impaired persons must be provided, subject to
reasonable advance notice.3 The Attorney General's Disability Rights Project is available to

answer questions about accessibility and may be reached at

3 The Massachusetts Commission for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing will assist with arrangements for a sign

language interpreter. The Commission may be reached at 617-740-1600 VOICE and 617-740-1700 TTY.

9 I P age



(617)963-2939.

What information must meeting notices contain?

Meeting notices must be posted in a legible, easily understandable format; contain the

date, time, and place of the meeting; and list all topics that the chair reasonably anticipates, 48

hours in advance, will be discussed at the meeting. The list of topics must be sufficiently

specific to reasonably inform the public of the issues to be discussed at the meeting. Where

there are no anticipated topics for discussion in open session other than the procedural

requirements for convening an executive session, the public body should list "open session" as

a topic, in addition to the executive session, so the public is aware that it has the opportunity to

attend and learn the basis for the executive session.

Meeting notices must also indicate the date and time that the notice was posted, either

on the notice itself or in a document or website accompanying the notice. If a notice is revised,

the revised notice must also conspicuously record both the date and time the original notice

was posted as well as the date and time the last revision was posted. Recording the date and

time enables the public to observe that public bodies are complying with the Open Meeting

Law's notice requirements without requiring constant vigilance. Additionally, in the event of a

complaint, it provides the Attorney General with evidence of compliance with those

requirements.

If a discussion topic is proposed after a meeting notice is posted, and it was not

reasonably anticipated by the chair more than 48 hours before the meeting, the public body

should update its posting to provide the public with as much notice as possible of what subjects

will be discussed during the meeting. Although a public body may consider a topic that was not

listed in the meeting notice if it was not anticipated, the Attorney General strongly encourages

public bodies to postpone discussion and action on topics that are controversial or may be of

particular interest to the public if the topic was not listed in the meeting notice.

Executive

When can a public body meet in executive session?

While all meetings of public bodies must be open to the public, certain topics may be

discussed in executive, or closed, session. Before going into an executive session, the chair of

the public body must first:

• Convene in open session;

• State the reason for the executive session, stating all subjects that may be revealed

without compromising the purpose for which the executive session was called;

• State whether the public body will reconvene in open session at the end of the

executive session; and

10 I P age



• Take a roll call vote of the body to enter executive session.

Where a public body member is participating in an executive session remotely, the

member must state at the start of the executive session that no other person is present or able

to hear the discussion at the remote location. The public body may authorize, by a simple

majority vote, the presence and participation of other individuals at the remote participant's

location.

While in executive session, the public body must keep accurate records, all votes taken

must be recorded by roll call, and the public body may only discuss matters for which the

executive session was called.

The Ten Purposes for Executive Session

The law states ten specific purposes for which an executive session may be held, and

emphasizes that these are the only reasons for which a public body may enter executive

session.

The ten purposes for which a public body may vote to hold an executive session are:

1. To discuss the reputation, character, physical condition or mental health, rather than

professional competence, of an individual, or to discuss the discipline or dismissal of,

or complaints or charges brought against, a public officer, employee, staff member or

individual. The individual to be discussed in such executive session shall be notified in

writing by the public body at least 48 hours prior to the proposed executive session;

provided, however, that notification may be waived upon written agreement of the

parties.

This purpose is designed to protect the rights and reputation of individuals.

Nevertheless, where a public body is discussing an employee evaluation, considering

applicants for a position, or discussing the qualifications of any individual, these

discussions should be held in open session to the extent that the discussion deals with

issues other than the reputation, character, health, or any complaints or charges against

the individual. An executive session called for this purpose triggers certain rights for the

individual who is the subject of the discussion. The individual has the right to be

present, though he or she may choose not to attend. The individual who is the subject

of the discussion may also choose to have the discussion in an open meeting, and that

choice takes precedence over the right of the public body to go into executive session.

While the imposition of disciplinary sanctions by a public body on an individual

fits within this purpose, this purpose does not apply if, for example, the public body is

deciding whether to lay off a large number of employees because of budgetary

constraints.

11 I Page



2. To conduct strategy sessions in preparation for negotiations with nonunion personnel

or to conduct collective bargaining sessions or contract negotiations with nonunion

personnel;

Generally, a public body must identify the specific non-union personnel or

collective bargaining unit with which it is negotiating before entering into executive

session under Purpose 2. A public body may withhold the identity of the non-union

personnel or bargaining unit if publicly disclosing that information would compromise

the purpose for which the executive session was called. While we generally defer to

public bodies' assessment of whether the inclusion of such details would compromise

the purpose for an executive session, a public body must be able to demonstrate a

reasonable basis for that claim if challenged.

While a public body may agree on terms with individual non-union personnel in

executive session, the final vote to execute such agreements must be taken by the

public body in open session. In contrast, a public body may approve final terms and

execute a collective bargaining agreement in executive session, but should promptly

disclose the agreement in open session following its execution.

Collective Bargaining Sessions: These include not only the bargaining sessions,

but also include grievance hearings that are required by a collective bargaining

agreement.

3. To discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining or litigation if an open

meeting may have a detrimental effect on the bargaining or litigating position of the

public body and the chair so declares;

Generally, a public body must identify the collective bargaining unit with which it

is negotiating or the litigation matter it is discussing before entering into executive

session under Purpose 3. A public body may withhold the identity of the collective

bargaining unit or name of the litigation matter if publicly disclosing that information

would compromise the purpose for which the executive session was called. While we

generally defer to public bodies' assessment of whether the inclusion of such details

would compromise the purpose for an executive session, a public body must be able to

demonstrate a reasonable basis for that claim if challenged.

Collective Bargaining Strategy: Discussions with respect to collective bargaining

strategy include discussion of proposals for wage and benefit packages or working

conditions for union employees. The public body, if challenged, has the burden of

proving that an open meeting might have a detrimental effect on its bargaining position.

The showing that must be made is that an open discussion may have a detrimental

effect on the collective bargaining process; the body is not required to demonstrate a

definite harm that would have arisen. At the time the executive session is proposed and

12 I P age



voted on, the chair must state on the record that having the discussion in an open

session may be detrimental to the public body's bargaining or litigating position.

Litigation Strategy: Discussions concerning strategy with respect to ongoing

litigation obviously fit within this purpose but only if an open meeting may have a

detrimental effect on the litigating position of the public body. Discussions relating to

potential litigation are not covered by this exemption unless that litigation is clearly and

imminently threatened or otherwise demonstrably likely. That a person is represented

by counsel and supports a position adverse to the public body's does not by itself mean

that litigation is imminently threatened or likely. Nor does the fact that a newspaper

reports a party has threatened to sue necessarily mean imminent litigation.

Note: For the reasons discussed above, a public body's discussions with its

counsel do not automatically fall under this or any other purpose for holding an

executive session.

4. To discuss the deployment of security personnel or devices, or strategies with respect

thereto;

5. To investigate charges of criminal misconduct or to consider the filing of criminal

complaints;

This purpose permits an executive session to investigate charges of criminal

misconduct and to consider the filing of criminal complaints. Thus, it primarily involves

discussions that would precede the formal criminal process in court. Purpose 1 is

related, in that it permits an executive session to discuss certain complaints or charges,

which may include criminal complaints or charges, but only those that have already

been brought. However, Purpose 1 confers certain rights of participation on the

individual involved, as well as the right for the individual to insist that the discussion

occur in open session. Purpose 5 does not require that the same rights be given to the

person who is the subject of a criminal complaint. To the limited extent that there is

overlap between Purposes 1 and 5, a public body has discretion to choose which

purpose to invoke when going into executive session.

6. To consider the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if the chair

declares that an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the negotiating

position of the public body;

Generally, a public body must identify the specific piece of property it plans to

discuss before entering into executive session under Purpose 6. A public body may

withhold the identity of the property if publicly disclosing that information would

compromise the purpose for which the executive session was called. While we

generally defer to public bodies' assessment of whether the inclusion of such details

13 I P age



would compromise the purpose for an executive session, a public body must be able to

demonstrate a reasonable basis for that claim if challenged.

Under this purpose, as with the collective bargaining and litigation purpose, an

executive session may be held only where an open meeting may have a detrimental

impact on the body's negotiating position with a third party. At the time that the

executive session is proposed and voted on, the chair must state on the record that

having the discussion in an open session may be detrimental to the public body's

negotiating position.

7. To comply with, or act under the authority of, any general or special law or federal

grant-in-aid requirements;

There may be provisions in state statutes or federal grants that require or

specifically allow a public body to consider a particular issue in a closed session. Before

entering executive session under this purpose, the public body must cite the specific law

or federal grant-in-aid requirement that necessitates confidentiality. A public body may

withhold that information only if publicly disclosing it would compromise the purpose

for which the executive session was called. While we generally defer to public bodies'

assessment of whether the inclusion of such details would compromise the purpose for

an executive session, a public body must be able to demonstrate a reasonable basis for

that claim if challenged.

8. To consider or interview applicants for employment or appointment by a preliminary

screening committee if the chair declares that an open meeting will have a

detrimental effect in obtaining qualified applicants; provided, however, that this

clause shall not apply to any meeting, including meetings of a preliminary screening

committee, to consider and interview applicants who have passed a prior preliminary

screening;

This purpose permits a hiring subcommittee of a public body or a preliminary

screening committee to conduct the initial screening process in executive session. This

purpose does not apply to any stage in the hiring process after the screening committee

or subcommittee votes to recommend candidates to its parent body. It may, however,

include a review of resumes and multiple rounds of interviews by the screening

committee aimed at narrowing the group of applicants down to finalists. At the time

that the executive session is proposed and voted on, the chair must state on the record

that having the discussion in an open session will be detrimental to the public body's

ability to attract qualified applicants for the position. If the public body opts to convene

a preliminary screening committee, the committee must contain less than a quorum of

the members of the parent public body. The committee may also contain members

who are not members of the parent public body.

14 I P age



Note that a public body is not required to create a preliminary screening

committee to consider or interview applicants. However, if the body chooses to

conduct the review of applicants itself, it may not do so in executive session.

9. To meet or confer with a mediator, as defined in section 23C of chapter 233, with

respect to any litigation or decision on any public business within its jurisdiction

involving another party, group or entity, provided that:

(i) any decision to participate in mediation shall be made in an open session and

the parties, issues involved and purpose of the mediation shall be disclosed; and

(ii) no action shall be taken by any public body with respect to those issues which

are the subject of the mediation without deliberation and approval for such

action at an open session.

10. To discuss trade secrets or confidential, competitively-sensitive or other proprietary

information provided:

• in the course of activities conducted by a governmental body as an energy supplier

under a license granted by the department of public utilities pursuant to section IF

of chapter 164;

• in the course of activities conducted as a municipal aggregator under section 134 of

said chapter 164; or

• in the course of activities conducted by a cooperative consisting of governmental

entities organized pursuant to section 136 of said chapter 164;

• when such governmental body, municipal aggregator or cooperative determines

that such disclosure will adversely affect its ability to conduct business in relation to

other entities making, selling or distributing electric power and energy.

Remote Participation

May a member of a public body participate remotely?

The Attorney General's Regulations, 940 CMR 29.10, permit remote participation in

certain circumstances. However, the Attorney General strongly encourages members of public

bodies to physically attend meetings whenever possible. Members of public bodies have a

responsibility to ensure that remote participation in meetings is not used in a way that would

defeat the purposes of the Open Meeting Law, namely promoting transparency with regard to

deliberations and decisions on which public policy is based.

Note that the Attorney General's regulations enable members of public bodies to

participate remotely if the practice has been properly adopted, but do not require that a public

body permit members of the public to participate remotely. If a public body chooses to allow

15 I P age



individuals who are not members of the public body to participate remotely in a meeting, it

may do so without following the Open Meeting Law's remote participation procedures.

How can the practice of remote participation be adopted?

Remote participation may be used during a meeting of a public body if it has first been

adopted by the chief executive officer of the municipality for local public bodies, the county

commissioners for county public bodies, or by a majority vote of the public body for retirement

boards, district, regional and state public bodies. The chief executive officer may be the board

of selectmen, the city council, or the mayor, depending on the municipality. See G.L. c. 4, § 7.

If the chief executive officer in a municipality authorizes remote participation, that

authorization applies to all public bodies in the municipality. 940 CMR 29,10(2)(a). However,

the chief executive officer determines the amount and source of payment for any costs

associated with remote participation and may decide to fund the practice only for certain public

bodies. See 940 CMR 29.10(6)(e). In addition, the chief executive officer can authorize public

bodies in that municipality to "opt out" of the practice altogether. See 940 CMR 29.10(8).

Note about Local Commissions on Disability: Local commissions on disability may decide

by majority vote of the commissioners at a regular meeting to permit remote participation

during a specific meeting or during all commission meetings. G.L. c. BOA, § 20(e). Adoption by

the municipal adopting authority is not required.

What are the permissible reasons for remote participation?

Once remote participation is adopted, any member of a public body may participate

remotely only if physical attendance would be unreasonably difficult.

What are the acceptable means of remote participation?

Acceptable means of remote participation include telephone, internet, or satellite

enabled audio or video conferencing, or any other technology that enables the remote

participant and all persons present at the meeting location to be clearly audible to one another.

Text messaging, instant messaging, email and web chat without audio are not acceptable

methods of remote participation. Note that accommodations must be made for any public

body member who requires TTY service, video relay service, or other form of adaptive

telecommunications.

What are the minimum requirements for remote participation?

Any public body using remote participation during a meeting must ensure that the following

minimum requirements are met:

16 I P age



A quorum of the body, including the chair or, in the chair's absence, the person chairing

the meeting, must be physically present at the meeting location;

Members of a public body who participate remotely and all persons present at the

meeting location must be clearly audible to each other; and

All votes taken during a meeting in which a member participates remotely must be by

roll call vote.

What procedures must be followed if remote participation is used at a meeting?

At the start of any meeting during which a member of a public body will participate

remotely, the chair must announce the name of any member who is participating remotely;

such information must also be recorded in the meeting minutes. The chair's statement does

not need to contain any detail about the reason for the member's remote participation.

Members of public bodies who participate remotely may vote and shall not be deemed

absent for purposes of G.L. c.39, § 23D. In addition, members who participate remotely may

participate in executive sessions but must state at the start of any such session that no other

person is present or able to hear the discussion at the remote location, unless the public body

has approved the presence of that individual.

If technical difficulties arise as a result of utilizing remote participation, the chair (or, in

the chair's absence, person chairing the meeting) may decide how to address the situation.

Public bodies are encouraged, whenever possible, to suspend discussion while reasonable

efforts are made to correct any problem that interferes with a remote participant's ability to

hear or be heard clearly by all persons present at the meeting location. If a remote participant

is disconnected from the meeting, the minutes must note that fact and the time at which the

disconnection occurred.

Public

What public participation in meetings must be allowed?

Under the Open Meeting Law, the public is permitted to attend meetings of public

bodies but is excluded from an executive session that is called for a valid purpose listed in the

law. While the public is permitted to attend an open meeting, an individual may not address

the public body without permission of the chair. An individual may not disrupt a meeting of a

public body, and at the request of the chair, all members of the public shall be silent. If, after

clear warning, a person continues to be disruptive, the chair may order the person to leave the

meeting. If the person does not leave, the chair may authorize a constable or other officer to

remove the person. Although public participation is entirely within the chair's discretion, the

Attorney General encourages public bodies to allow as much public participation as time

permits.

17 I P age



Any member of the public may make an audio or video recording of an open session of a

public meeting. A member of the public who wishes to record a meeting must first notify the

chair and must comply with reasonable requirements regarding audio or video equipment

established by the chair so as not to interfere with the meeting. The chair is required to inform

other attendees of any such recording at the beginning of the meeting. If someone arrives after

the meeting has begun and wishes to record a meeting, that person should attempt to notify

the chair prior to beginning recording, ideally in a manner that does not significantly disrupt the

meeting in progress (such as passing a note for the chair to the board administrator or

secretary). The chair should endeavor to acknowledge such attempts at notification and

announce the fact of any recording to those in attendance.

Minutes

What records of public meetings must be kept?

Public bodies are required to create and maintain accurate minutes of all meetings,

including executive sessions. The minutes, which must be created and approved in a timely

manner, must include:

• the date, time and place of the meeting;

• the members present or absent;

• the decisions made and actions taken, including a record of all votes;

• a summary of the discussions on each subject;

• a list of all documents and exhibits used at the meeting; and

• the name of any member who participated in the meeting remotely.

While the minutes must include a summary of the discussions on each subject, a

transcript is not required. No vote taken by a public body, either in an open or in an executive

session, shall be by secret ballot. All votes taken in executive session must be by roll call and

the results recorded in the minutes. While public bodies must identify in the minutes all

documents and exhibits used at a meeting and must retain them in accordance with the

Secretary of the Commonwealth's records retention schedule, these documents and exhibits

needn't be attached to or physically stored with the minutes.

Minutes, and all documents and exhibits used, are public records and a part of the

official record of the meeting. Records may be subject to disclosure under either the Open

Meeting Law or Public Records Law. The State and Municipal Record Retention Schedules are

available through the Secretary of the Commonwealth's website at:

http://w\A/w,sec.state.ma.us/arc/arcrmu/rmuidx.htm.

Open Session Meeting Records

18 I P age



The Open Meeting Law requires public bodies to create and approve minutes in a timely

manner. A "timely manner" is considered to be within the next three public body meetings or

30 days from the date of the meeting, whichever is later, unless the public body can show good

cause for further delay. The Attorney General encourages minutes to be approved at a public

body's next meeting whenever possible. The law requires that existing minutes be made

available to the public within ten days of a request, whether they have been approved or

remain in draft form. Materials or other exhibits used by the public body in an open meeting

must also be made available to the public within ten days of a request.

There are two exemptions to the open session records disclosure requirement: 1)

materials (other than those that were created by members of the public body for the purpose

of the evaluation) used in a performance evaluation of an individual bearing on his professional

competence, and 2) materials (other than any resume submitted by an applicant, which is

subject to disclosure) used in deliberations about employment or appointment of individuals,

including applications and supporting materials. Documents created by members of the public

body for the purpose of performing an evaluation are subject to disclosure. This applies to both

individual evaluations and evaluation compilations, provided the documents were created by

members of the public body for the purpose of the evaluation.

Executive Session Meeting Records

Public bodies are not required to disclose the minutes, notes, or other materials used in

an executive session if the disclosure of these records may defeat the lawful purposes of the

executive session. Once disclosure would no longer defeat the purposes of the executive

session, however, minutes and other records from that executive session must be disclosed

unless they fall within an exemption to the Public Records Law, G.L. c. 4, § 7, d. 26,or the

attorney-client privilege applies. Public bodies are also required to periodically review their

executive session minutes to determine whether continued non-disclosure is warranted. These

determinations must be included in the minutes of the body's next meeting.

A public body must respond to a request to inspect or copy executive session minutes

within ten days of the request. If the public body has determined, prior to the request, that the

requested executive session minutes may be released, it must make those minutes available to

the requester at that time. If the body previously determined that executive session minutes

should remain confidential because publication would defeat the lawful purposes of the

executive session, it should respond by stating the reason the minutes continue to be withheld.

And if, at the time of a request, the public body has not conducted a review of the minutes to

determine whether continued nondisclosure is warranted, the body must perform such a

review and release the minutes, if appropriate, no later than its next meeting or within 30 days,

whichever occurs first. In such circumstances, the body should still respond to the request

within ten days, notifying the requester that it is conducting this review.

19 I P age



Meeting Law Complaints

What is the Attorney General's role in enforcing the Open Meeting Law?

The Attorney General's Division of Open Government is responsible for enforcing the

Open Meeting Law. The Attorney General has the authority to receive and investigate

complaints, bring enforcement actions, issue advisory opinions, and promulgate regulations.

The Division of Open Government regularly seeks feedback from the public on ways in

which it can better support public bodies to help them comply with the law's requirements.

The Division of Open Government offers periodic online and in-person training on the Open

Meeting Law and will respond to requests for guidance and information from public bodies and

the public.

The Division of Open Government will take complaints from members of the public and

will work with public bodies to resolve problems. While any member of the public may file a

complaint with a public body alleging a violation of the Open Meeting Law, a public body need

not, and the Division of Open Government will not, investigate anonymous complaints.

What is the Open Meeting Law complaint procedure?

Step 1. Filing a Complaint with the Public Body

Individuals who allege a violation of the Open Meeting Law must first file a complaint

with the public body alleged to have violated the OML. The complaint must be filed within 30

days of the date of the violation, or the date the complainant could reasonably have known of

the violation. The complaint must be filed on a Complaint Form available on the Attorney

General's website, www.mass.gov/ago/openmeeting. When filing a complaint with a local

public body, the complainant must also file a copy of the complaint with the municipal clerk.

Step 2. The Public Body's Response

Upon receipt, the chair of the public body should distribute copies of the complaint to

the members of the public body for their review. The public body has 14 business days from

the date of receipt to meet to review the complainant's allegations, take remedial action if

appropriate, notify the complainant of the remedial action, and forward a copy of the
complaint and description of the remedial action taken to the complainant. The public body

must simultaneously notify the Attorney General that it has responded to the complainant and

provide the Attorney General with a copy of the response and a description of any remedial

action taken. While the public body may delegate responsibility for responding to the

complaint to counsel or another individual, it must first meet to do so. A public body is not

required to respond to unsigned complaints or complaints not made on the Attorney General's

complaint form.

20 I Pa



The public body may request additional information from the complainant within seven

business days of receiving the complaint. The complainant then has ten business days to

respond; the public body will then have an additional ten business days after receiving the

complainant's response to review the complaint and take remedial action. The public body

may also request an extension of time to respond to the complaint. A request for an extension

should be made within 14 business days of receipt of the complaint by the public body. The

request for an extension should be made in writing to the Division of Open Government and

should include a copy of the complaint and state the reason for the requested extension.

Step 3. Filing a Complaint with the Attorney General's Office

A complaint is ripe for review by the Attorney General 30 days after the complaint is

filed with the public body. This 30-day period is intended to provide a reasonable opportunity

for the complainant and the public body to resolve the initial complaint. It is important to note

that complaints are not automatically treated as filed for review by the Attorney General upon

filing with the public body. A complainant who has filed a complaint with a public body and

seeks further review by the Division of Open Government must file the complaint with the

Attorney General after the 30-day local review period has elapsed but before 90 days have

passed since the date of the violation or the date that the violation was reasonably

discoverable.

When filing the complaint with the Attorney General, the complainant must include a

copy of the original complaint and may include any other materials the complainant feels are

relevant, including an explanation of why the complainant is not satisfied with the response of

the public body. Note, however, that the Attorney General will not review allegations that

were not raised in the initial complaint filed with the public body. Under most circumstances,

complaints filed with the Attorney General, and any documents submitted with the complaint,

will be considered a public record and will be made available to anyone upon request.

The Attorney General will review the complaint and any remedial action taken by the

public body. The Attorney General may request additional information from both the

complainant and the public body. The Attorney General will seek to resolve complaints in a

reasonable period of time, generally within 90 days of the complaint becoming ripe for review

by our office. The Attorney General may decline to investigate a complaint that is filed with our

office more than 90 days after the date of the alleged violation.

May a public body request mediation to resolve a complaint?

If a complainant files five complaints with the same public body or within the same

municipality within 12 months, the public body may request mediation upon the fifth or

subsequent complaint in order to resolve the complaint. The public body must request

mediation prior to, or with, its response to the complaint, and will assume the expense of such

mediation. If the parties cannot come to an agreement after mediation, the public body will

21 I Pa ge



have ten business days to respond to the complaint and its resolution will proceed in the

normal course.

Mediation may occur in open session or in executive session under Purpose 9. In

addition, a public body may designate a representative to participate on behalf of the public

body. If mediation does not resolve the complaint to each party's satisfaction, the complainant

may file the complaint with the Attorney General. The complaint must be filed within 30 days

of the last joint meeting with the mediator.

The mediator will be chosen by the Attorney General. If the complainant declines to

participate in mediation after a request by the public body, the Attorney General may decline

to review a complaint thereafter filed with our office. A public body may always request

mediation to resolve a complaint, but only mediation requested upon a fifth or subsequent

complaint triggers the requirement that the complainant participate in the mediation before

the Attorney General will review the complaint.

Any written agreement reached in mediation must be disclosed at the public body's

next meeting following execution of the agreement and will become a public record.

When is a violation of the law considered "intentional"?

Upon finding a violation of the Open Meeting Law, the Attorney General may impose a

civil penalty upon a public body of not more than $1,000 for each intentional violation. G.L. c.

30A, § 23(c)(4). An "intentional violation" is an act or omission by a public body or public body

member in knowing violation of the Open Meeting Law. G.L. c. 30A, § 18. In determining

whether a violation was intentional, the Attorney General will consider, among other things,

whether the public body or public body member 1) acted with specific intent to violate the law;

2) acted with deliberate ignorance of the law's requirements; or 3) had been previously

informed by a court decision or advised by the Attorney General that the conduct at issue

violated the Open Meeting Law. 940 CMR 29,02. If a public body or public body member made

a good faith attempt at compliance with the law but was reasonably mistaken about its

requirements, its conduct will not be considered an intentional violation of the Law. G.L. c.

30A, § 23(g); 940 CMR 29.02. A fine will not be imposed where a public body or public body

member acted in good faith compliance with the advice of the public body's legal counsel. G.L.

30A, §23(g); 940 CMR 29.07.

Will the Attorney General's Office on the

Meeting Law?

The Open Meeting Law directs the Attorney General to create educational materials and

provide training to public bodies to foster awareness of and compliance with the Open Meeting

Law. The Attorney General has established an Open Meeting Law website,

22 I P age



www.mass.gov/ago/openmeeting, on which government officials and members of public

bodies can find the statute, regulations, FAQs, training materials, the Attorney General's

determination letters resolving complaints, and other resources. The Attorney General offers

periodic webinars and in-person regional training events for members of the public and public

bodies, in addition to offering a free online training video.

the

If you have any questions about the Open Meeting Law or anything contained in this

guide, please contact the Attorney General's Division of Open Government. The Attorney

General also welcomes any comments, feedback, or suggestions you may have about the Open

Meeting Law or this guide.

Division of Open Government

Office of the Attorney General

One Ashburton Place

Boston, MA 02108
Tel: 617-963-2540

www.mass.gov/ago/openmeeting

OpenMeeting(S)state.ma.us

23 I P age



Appendix

24 I Pa ge



The G.L. c. §§ 18-254

Chapter 28 of the Acts of 2009, sections 17-20, repealed the existing state Open Meeting Law, G.L.

c. 30A, §§ 11A, 11A-1/2, county Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 34, §9F, 9G, and municipal Open Meeting

Law, G.L. c. 39, §§ 23A, 23B, and 23C, and replaced them with a single Open Meeting Law covering all

public bodies, G.L. c. BOA, §§ 18-25, enforced by the Attorney General.

Section 18; [DEFINITIONS]

As used in this section and sections 19 to 25, inclusive, the following words shall, unless the

context clearly requires otherwise, have the following meanings:

"Deliberation", an oral or written communication through any medium, including electronic mail,

between or among a quorum of a public body on any public business within its jurisdiction; provided,

however, that "deliberation" shall not include the distribution of a meeting agenda, scheduling

information or distribution of other procedural meeting or the distribution of reports or documents

that may be discussed at a meeting, provided that no opinion of a member is expressed.

"Emergency", a sudden, generally unexpected occurrence or set of circumstances demanding

immediate action.

"Executive session", any part of a meeting of a public body closed to the public for deliberation of

certain matters.

"Intentional violation", an act or omission by a public body or a member thereof, in knowing

violation of the open meeting law.

"Meeting", a deliberation by a public body with respect to any matter within the body's

jurisdiction; provided, however, "meeting" shall not include:

(a) an on-site inspection of a project or program, so long as the members do not deliberate;

(b) attendance by a quorum of a public body at a public or private gathering, including a

conference or training program or a media, social or other event, so long as the members do

not deliberate;

(c) attendance by a quorum of a public body at a meeting of another public body that has

complied with the notice requirements of the open meeting law, so long as the visiting

members communicate only by open participation in the meeting on those matters under

discussion by the host body and do not deliberate; a meeting of a quasi-judicial board or

commission held for the sole purpose of making a decision required in an adjudicatory

proceeding brought before it; or

(d) a session of a town meeting convened under section 9 of chapter 39 which would include

the attendance by a quorum of a public body at any such session.

(e) "Minutes", the written report of a meeting created by a public body required by subsection (a)

4 NOTICE: This is NOT the official version of the Massachusetts General Law (MGL). While reasonable efforts have

been made to ensure the accuracy and currency of the data provided, do not rely on this information without first

checking an official edition of the M6L.

25 [ P age



of section 22 and section 5A of chapter 66,

"Open meeting law", sections 18 to 25, inclusive.

"Post notice", to display conspicuously the written announcement of a meeting either in hard

copy or electronic format.

"Preliminary screening", the initial stage of screening applicants conducted by a committee or

subcommittee of a public body solely for the purpose of providing to the public body a list of those

applicants qualified for further consideration or interview.

"Public body", a multiple-member board, commission, committee or subcommittee within the

executive or legislative branch or within any county, district, city, region or town, however created,

elected, appointed or otherwise constituted, established to serve a public purpose; provided,

however, that the governing board of a local housing, redevelopment or other similar authority shall

be deemed a local public body; provided, further, that the governing board or body of any other

authority established by the general court to serve a public purpose in the commonwealth or any

part thereof shall be deemed a state public body; provided, further, that "public body" shall not

include the general court or the committees or recess commissions thereof, bodies of the judicial

branch or bodies appointed by a constitutional officer solely for the purpose of advising a

constitutional officer and shall not include the board of bank incorporation or the policyholders

protective board; and provided further, that a subcommittee shall include any multiple-member

body created to advise or make recommendations to a public body.

"Q.uorum", a simple majority of the members of the public body, unless otherwise provided in a

general or special law, executive order or other authorizing provision.

Section 19. Division of Open Government; Open Meeting Law Training; Open Meeting Law
Advisory Commission; Annual Report

(a) There shall be in the department of the attorney general a division of open government under

the direction of a director of open government. The attorney general shall designate an

assistant attorney general as the director of the open government division. The director may

appoint and remove, subject to the approval of the attorney general, such expert, clerical and

other assistants as the work of the division may require. The division shall perform the duties

imposed upon the attorney general by

(b) the open meeting law; which may include participating, appearing and intervening in any

administrative and judicial proceedings pertaining to the enforcement of the open meeting

law. For the purpose of such participation, appearance, intervention and training authorized

by this chapter the attorney general may expend such funds as may be appropriated therefor.

(c) The attorney general shall create and distribute educational materials and provide training

to public bodies in order to foster awareness and compliance with the open meeting law.

Open meeting law training may include, but shall not be limited to, instruction in:

1. the general background of the legal requirements for the open meeting law;

2. applicability of sections 18 to 25, inclusive, to governmental bodies;

3. the role of the attorney general in enforcing the open meeting law; and

4. penalties and other consequences for failure to comply with this chapter.

26 I P age



(d) There shall be an open meeting law advisory commission. The commission shall consist of 5

members, 2 of whom shall be the chairmen of the joint committee on state administration

and regulatory oversight; 1 of whom shall be the president of the Massachusetts Municipal

Association or his designee; 1 of whom shall be the president of the Massachusetts

Newspaper Publishers Association or his designee; and 1 of whom shall be the attorney

general or his designee.

(e) The commission shall review issues relative to the open meeting law and shall submit to the

attorney general recommendations for changes to the regulations, trainings, and educational

initiatives relative to the open meeting law as it deems necessary and appropriate.

(f) The attorney general shall, not later than January 31, file annually with the commission a report

providing information on the enforcement of the open meeting law during the preceding

calendar year. The report shall include, but not be limited to:

1. the number of open meeting law complaints received by the attorney general;

2. the number of hearings convened as the result of open meeting law complaints by

the attorney general;

3. a summary of the determinations of violations made by the attorney general;

4. a summary of the orders issued as the result of the determination of an open

meeting law violation by the attorney general;

5. an accounting of the fines obtained by the attorney general as the result of open

meeting law enforcement actions;

6. the number of actions filed in superior court seeking relief from an order of the

attorney general; and

7. any additional information relevant to the administration and enforcement of the

open meeting law that the attorney general deemsappropriate.

Section 20. Meetings of a Public Body to be Open to the Public; Notice of Meeting; Remote

Participation; Recording and Transmission of Meeting; Removal of Persons for Disruption of
Proceedings

(a) Except as provided in section 21, all meetings of a public body shall be open to the public.

(b) Except in an emergency, in addition to any notice otherwise required by law, a public body

shall post notice of every meeting at least 48 hours prior to such meeting, excluding

Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays. In an emergency, a public body shall post notice as

soon as reasonably possible prior to such meeting. Notice shall be printed in a legible, easily

understandable format and shall contain the date, time and place of such meeting and a

listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be discussed at the meeting.

(c) For meetings of a local public body, notice shall be filed with the municipal clerk and posted in

a manner conspicuously visible to the public at all hours in or on the municipal building in

which the clerk's office is located.

(d) For meetings of a regional or district public body, notice shall be filed and posted in each city

or town within the region or district in the manner prescribed for local public bodies. For

meetings of a regional school district, the secretary of the regional school district committee

27 I P age



shall be considered to be its clerk and shall file notice with the clerk of each city or town within

such district and shall post the notice in the manner prescribed for local public bodies. For

meetings of a county public body, notice shall be filed in the office of the county

commissioners and a copy of the notice shall be publicly posted in a manner conspicuously

visible to the public at all hours in such place or places as the county commissioners shall

designate for the purpose.

(e) For meetings of a state public body, notice shall be filed with the attorney general by posting

on a website in accordance with procedures established for this purpose and a duplicate copy

of the notice shall be filed with the regulations division of the state secretary's office.

(f) The attorney general shall have the authority to prescribe or approve alternative methods of

notice where the attorney general determines such alternative will afford more effective notice

to the public.

(g) The attorney general may by regulation or letter ruling, authorize remote participation by

members of a public body not present at the meeting location; provided, however, that the

absent members and all persons present at the meeting location are clearly audible to each

other; and provided, further, that a quorum of the body, including the chair, are present at

the meeting location. Such authorized members may vote and shall not be deemed absent for

the purposes of section 23D of chapter 39.

(h) A local commission on disability may by majority vote of the commissioners at a regular

meeting authorize remote participation applicable to a specific meeting or generally to all of

the commission's meetings. If a local commission on disability is authorized to utilize remote

participation, a physical quorum of that commission's members shall not be required to be

present at the meeting location; provided, however, that the chair or, in the chair's absence,

the person authorized to chair the meeting, shall be physically present at the meeting location.

The commission shall comply with all other requirements of law.

(i) No person shall address a meeting of a public body without permission of the chair, and all

persons shall, at the request of the chair, be silent. No person shall disrupt the proceedings of a

meeting of a public body. If, after clear warning from the chair, a person continues to disrupt

the proceedings, the chair may order the person to withdraw from the meeting and if the

person does not withdraw, the chair may authorize a constable or other officer to remove the

person from the meeting.

(j) Within 2 weeks of qualification for office, all persons serving on a public body shall certify, on

a form prescribed by the attorney general, the receipt of a copy of the open meeting law,

regulations promulgated pursuant to section 25 and a copy of the educational materials

prepared by the attorney general explaining the open meeting law and its application

pursuant to section 19. Unless otherwise directed or approved by the attorney general, the

appointing authority, city or town clerk or the executive director or other appropriate

administrator of a state or regional body, or their designees, shall obtain such certification

from each person upon entering service and shall retain it subject to the applicable records

retention schedule where the body maintains its official records. The certification shall be

evidence that the member of a public body has read and understands the requirements of the

28 I P age



open meeting law and the consequences of violating it.

Section 21. Executive Sessions

(a) A public body may meet in executive session only for the following purposes:

1. To discuss the reputation, character, physical condition or mental health, rather than

professional competence, of an individual, or to discuss the discipline or dismissal of,

or complaints or charges brought against, a public officer, employee, staff member or

individual. The individual to be discussed in such executive session shall be notified in

writing by the public body at least 48 hours prior to the proposed executive session;

provided, however, that notification may be waived upon written agreement of the

parties. A public body shall hold an open session if the individual involved requests that

the session be open. If an executive session is held, such individual shall have the

following rights:

i. to be present at such executive session during deliberations which involve that

individual;

ii. to have counsel or a representative of his own choosing present and attending

for the purpose of advising the individual and not for the purpose of active

participation in the executive session;

iii. to speak on his own behalf; and

iv. to cause an independent record to be created of said executive session by

audio-recording or transcription, at the individual'sexpense.

The rights of an individual set forth in this paragraph are in addition to the rights

that he may have from any other source, including, but not limited to, rights under any

laws or collective bargaining agreements and the exercise or non-exercise of the

individual rights under this section shall not be construed as a waiver of any rights of

the individual.

2. To conduct strategy sessions in preparation for negotiations with nonunion

personnel or to conduct collective bargaining sessions or contract negotiations

with nonunion personnel;

3. To discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining or litigation if an open meeting

may have a detrimental effect on the bargaining or litigating position of the public

body and the chair so declares;

4. To discuss the deployment of security personnel or devices, or strategies with respect

thereto;

5. To investigate charges of criminal misconduct or to consider the filing of criminal

complaints;

6. To consider the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if the chair

declares that an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the negotiating

position of the public body;

7. To comply with, or act under the authority of, any general or special law or federal

grant-in-aid requirements;

29 I P age



8. To consider or interview applicants for employment or appointment by a preliminary

screening committee if the chair declares that an open meeting will have a detrimental

effect in obtaining qualified applicants; provided, however, that this clause shall not

apply to any meeting, including meetings of a preliminary screening committee, to

consider and interview applicants who have passed a prior preliminary screening;

9. To meet or confer with a mediator, as defined in section 23C of chapter 233, with

respect to any litigation or decision on any public business within its jurisdiction

involving another party, group or entity, provided that:

i. any decision to participate in mediation shall be made in an open session and

the parties, issues involved and purpose of the mediation shall be disclosed;

and

ii. no action shall be taken by any public body with respect to those issues which

are the subject of the mediation without deliberation and approval for such

action at an open session; or

10. To discuss trade secrets or confidential, competitively-sensitive or other proprietary

information provided in the course of activities conducted by a governmental body as

an energy supplier under a license granted by the department of public utilities

pursuant to section IF of chapter 164, in the course of activities conducted as a

municipal aggregator under section 134 of said chapter 164 or in the course of

activities conducted by a cooperative consisting of governmental entities organized

pursuant to section 136 of said chapter 164, when such governmental body, municipal

aggregator or cooperative determines that such disclosure will adversely affect its

ability to conduct business in relation to other entities making, selling or distributing

electric power and energy.

(b) A public body may meet in closed session for 1 or more of the purposes enumerated

in subsection (a) provided that:

1. the body has first convened in an open session pursuant to section 21;

2. a majority of members of the body have voted to go into executive session and the

vote of each member is recorded by roll call and entered into the minutes;

3. before the executive session, the chair shall state the purpose for the executive session,

stating all subjects that may be revealed without compromising the purpose for which

the executive session was called;

4, the chair shall publicly announce whether the open session will reconvene at the

conclusion of the executive session; and

5. accurate records of the executive session shall be maintained pursuant to section 23.

Section 22. Meeting Minutes; Records

(a) A public body shall create and maintain accurate minutes of all meetings, including

executive sessions, setting forth the date, time and place, the members present or absent,

a summary of the discussions on each subject, a list of documents and other exhibits used at

the meeting, the decisions made and the actions taken at each meeting, including the

30 I P age



record of all votes.

(b) No vote taken at an open session shall be by secret ballot. Any vote taken at an executive

session shall be recorded by roll call and entered into the minutes.

(c) Minutes of all open sessions shall be created and approved in a timely manner. The minutes of

an open session, if they exist and whether approved or in draft form, shall be made available

upon request by any person within 10 days.

(d) Documents and other exhibits, such as photographs, recordings or maps, used by the body at

an open or executive session shall, along with the minutes, be part of the official record of the

session.

(e) The minutes of any open session, the notes, recordings or other materials used in the

preparation of such minutes and all documents and exhibits used at the session, shall be

public records in their entirety and not exempt from disclosure pursuant to any of the

exemptions under clause Twenty-sixth of section 7 of chapter 4. Notwithstanding this

paragraph, the following materials shall be exempt from disclosure to the public as personnel

information: (1) materials used in a performance evaluation of an individual bearing on his

professional competence, provided they were not created by the members of the body for

the purposes of the evaluation; and (2) materials used in deliberations about employment or

appointment of individuals, including applications and supporting materials; provided,

however, that any resume submitted by an applicant shall not be exempt.

(f) The minutes of any executive session, the notes, recordings or other materials used in the

preparation of such minutes and all documents and exhibits used at the session, may be

withheld from disclosure to the public in their entirety under subclause (a) of clause Twenty-

sixth of section 7 of chapter 4, as long as publication may defeat the lawful purposes of the

executive session, but no longer; provided, however, that the executive session was held in

compliance with section 21.

When the purpose for which a valid executive session was held has been served, the

minutes, preparatory materials and documents and exhibits of the session shall be disclosed

unless the attorney- client privilege or 1 or more of the exemptions under said clause Twenty-

sixth of said section 7 of said chapter 4 apply to withhold these records, or any portion thereof,

from disclosure.

For purposes of this subsection, if an executive session is held pursuant to clause (2) or (3)

of subsections (a) of section 21, then the minutes, preparatory materials and documents and

exhibits used at the session may be withheld from disclosure to the public in their entirety,

unless and until such time as a litigating, negotiating or bargaining position is no longer

jeopardized by such disclosure, at which time they shall be disclosed unless the attorney-client

privilege or 1 or more of the exemptions under said clause Twenty-sixth of said section 7 of

said chapter 4 apply to withhold these records, or any portion thereof, from disclosure.

(g) (1) The public body, or its chair or designee, shall, at reasonable intervals, review the minutes

of executive sessions to determine if the provisions of this subsection warrant continued non-

disclosure. Such determination shall be announced at the body's next meeting and such

announcement shall be included in the minutes of that meeting.

31| Page



2. Upon request by any person to inspect or copy the minutes of an executive session or any

portion thereof, the body shall respond to the request within 10 days following receipt and

shall release any such minutes not covered by an exemption under subsection (f);

provided, however, that if the body has not performed a review pursuant to paragraph (1),

the public body shall perform the review and release the non-exempt minutes, or any

portion thereof, not later than the body's next meeting or 30 days, whichever first occurs.

A public body shall not assess a fee for the time spent in its review.

Section 23. Enforcement of Open Meeting Law; Complaints; Hearings; Civil Actions

(a) Subject to appropriation, the attorney general shall interpret and enforce the open meeting law.

(b) At least 30 days prior to the filing of a complaint with the attorney general, the complainant

shall file a written complaint with the public body, setting forth the circumstances which

constitute the alleged violation and giving the body an opportunity to remedy the alleged

violation; provided, however, that such complaint shall be filed within 30 days of the date of

the alleged violation. The public body shall, within 14 business days of receipt of a complaint,

send a copy of the complaint to the attorney general and notify the attorney general of any

remedial action taken. Any remedial action taken by the public body in response to a

complaint under this subsection shall not be admissible as evidence against the public body

that a violation occurred in any later administrative or judicial proceeding relating to such

alleged violation. The attorney general may authorize an extension of time to the public body

for the purpose of taking remedial action upon the written request of the public body and a

showing of good cause to grant theextension.

(c) Upon the receipt of a complaint by any person, the attorney general shall determine, in a

timely manner, whether there has been a violation of the open meeting law. The attorney

general may, and before imposing any civil penalty on a public body shall, hold a hearing on

any such complaint. Following a determination that a violation has occurred, the attorney

general shall determine whether the public body, 1 or more of the members, or both, are

responsible and whether the violation was intentional or unintentional. Upon the finding of a

violation, the attorney general may issue an order to:

1. compel immediate and future compliance with the open meeting law;

2. compel attendance at a training session authorized by the attorney general;

3. nullify in whole or in part any action taken at the meeting;

4. impose a civil penalty upon the public body of not more than $1,000 for each

intentional violation;

5. reinstate an employee without loss of compensation, seniority, tenure or other benefits;

6. compel that minutes, records or other materials be made public; or

7. prescribe other appropriate action.

(d) A public body or any member of a body aggrieved by any order issued pursuant to this section

may, notwithstanding any general or special law to the contrary, obtain judicial review of the

order only through an action in superior court seeking relief in the nature of certiorari;

provided, however, that notwithstanding section 4 of chapter 249,any such action shall be

32 I P age



commenced in superior court within 21 days of receipt of the order. Any order issued under

this section shall be stayed pending judicial review; provided, however, that if the order

nullifies an action of the public body, the body shall not implement such action pending

judicial review.

(e) If any public body or member thereof shall fail to comply with the requirements set forth in any

order issued by the attorney general, or shall fail to pay any civil penalty imposed within 21

days of the date of issuance of such order or within 30 days following the decision of the

superior court if judicial review of such order has been timely sought, the attorney general may

file an action to compel compliance. Such action shall be filed in Suffolk superior court with

respect to state public bodies and, with respect to all other public bodies, in the superior court

in any county in which the public body acts or meets. If such body or member has not timely

sought judicial review of the order, such order shall not be open to review in an action to

compel compliance.

(f) As an alternative to the procedure in subsection (b), the attorney general or 3 or more

registered voters may initiate a civil action to enforce the open meeting law.

Any action under this subsection shall be filed in Suffolk superior court with respect to

state public bodies and, with respect to all other public bodies, in the superior court in any

county in which the public body acts or meets.

In any action filed pursuant to this subsection, in addition to all other remedies

available to the superior court, in law or in equity, the court shall have all of the remedies set

forth in subsection (c).

In any action filed under this subsection, the order of notice on the complaint shall be

returnable not later than 10 days after the filing and the complaint shall be heard and

determined on the return day or on such day as the court shall fix, having regard to the

speediest possible determination of the cause consistent with the rights of the parties;

provided, however, that orders may be issued at any time on or after the filing of the complaint

without notice when such order is necessary to fulfill the purposes of the open meeting law. In

the hearing of any action under this subsection, the burden shall be on the respondent to show

by a preponderance of the evidence that the action complained of in such complaint was in

accordance with and authorized by the open meeting law; provided, however, that no civil

penalty may be imposed on an individual absent proof that the action complained of violated

the open meeting law.

(g) It shall be a defense to the imposition of a penalty that the public body, after full

disclosure, acted in good faith compliance with the advice of the public body's legal

counsel.

(h) Payment of civil penalties under this section paid to or received by the attorney general shall

be paid into the general fund ofthecommonwealth.

Section 24, Investigation by Attorney General of Violations of Open Meeting Law

(a) Whenever the attorney general has reasonable cause to believe that a person, including any

33 I P age



public body and any other state, regional; county, municipal or other governmental official or

entity, has violated the open meeting law, the attorney general may conduct an investigation

to ascertain whether in fact such person has violated the open meeting law. Upon notification

of an investigation, any person, public body or any other state, regional, county, municipal or

other governmental official or entity who is the subject of an investigation, shall make all

information necessary to conduct such investigation available to the attorney general. In the

event that the person, public body or any other state, regional, county, municipal or other

governmental official or entity being investigated does not voluntarily provide relevant

information to the attorney general within 30 days of receiving notice of the investigation, the

attorney general may: (1) take testimony under oath concerning such alleged violation of the

open meeting law; (2) examine or cause to be examined any documentary material of

whatever nature relevant to such alleged violation of the open meeting law; and (3) require

attendance during such examination of documentary material of any person having knowledge

of the documentary material and take testimony under oath or acknowledgment in respect of

any such documentary material. Such testimony and examination shall take place in the county

where such person resides or has a place of business or, if the parties consent or such person is

a nonresident or has no place of business within the commonwealth, in Suffolk county.

(b) Notice of the time, place and cause of such taking of testimony, examination or attendance

shall be given by the attorney general at least 10 days prior to the date of such taking of

testimony or examination.

(c) Service of any such notice may be made by: (1) delivering a duly-executed copy to the person

to be served or to a partner or to any officer or agent authorized by appointment or by law to

receive service of process on behalf of such person; (2) delivering a duly-executed copy to the

principal place of business in the commonwealth of the person to be served; or (3) mailing by

registered or certified mail a duly-executed copy addressed to the person to be served at the

principal place of business in the commonwealth or, if said person has no place of business in

the commonwealth, to his principal office or place of business.

(d) Each such notice shall: (1) state the time and place for the taking of testimony or the

examination and the name and address of each person to be examined, if known and, if the

name is not known, a general description sufficient to identify him or the particular class or

group to which he belongs; (2) state the statute and section thereof, the alleged violation of

which is under investigation and the general subject matter of the investigation; (3) describe

the class or classes of documentary material to be produced thereunder with reasonable

specificity, so as fairly to indicate the material demanded; (4) prescribe a return date within

which the documentary material is to be produced;and (5) identify the members of the

attorney general's staff to whom such documentary material is to be made available for

inspection and copying.

(e) No such notice shall contain any requirement which would be unreasonable or improper if

contained in a subpoena duces tecum issued by a court of the commonwealth or require the

disclosure of any documentary material which would be privileged, or which for any other

reason would not be required by a subpoena duces tecum issued by a court of the

34 I P age



commonwealth.

(f) Any documentary material or other information produced by any person pursuant to this

section shall not, unless otherwise ordered by a court of the commonwealth for good cause

shown, be disclosed to any person other than the authorized agent or representative of the

attorney general, unless with the consent of the person producing the same; provided,

however, that such material or information may be disclosed by the attorney general in court

pleadings or other papers filed in court.

(g) At any time prior to the date specified in the notice, or within 21 days after the notice has

been served, whichever period is shorter, the court may, upon motion for good cause shown,

extend such reporting date or modify or set aside such demand or grant a protective order in

accordance with the standards set forth in Rule 26(c) of the Massachusetts Rules of Civil

Procedure. The motion may be filed in the superior court of the county in which the person

served resides or has his usual place of business or in Suffolk county. This section shall not be

applicable to any criminal proceeding nor shall information obtained under the authority of

this section be admissible in evidence in any criminal prosecution for substantially identical

transactions.

Section 25. Regulations; Letter Rulings; Advisory Opinions

(a) The attorney general shall have the authority to promulgate rules and regulations to carry out

enforcement of the open meeting law.

(b) The attorney general shall have the authority to interpret the open meeting law and to issue

written letter rulings or advisory opinions according to rules established under this section.

35 I P age



940 CMR

The official regulations are published in the Massachusetts Register. For more information, contact the

Secretary of the Commonwealth's State Publications and Regulations Division.

Section

29.01: Purpose, Scope and Other General Provisions

29.02: Definitions

29.03: Notice Posting Requirements

29.04: Certification

29.05: Complaints

29.06: Investigation

29.07: Resolution

29.08: Advisory Opinions

29.09: Other Enforcement Actions

29.10: Remote Participation

29.11: Meeting Minutes

29.01: Purpose, Scope and Other General Provisions

(1) Purpose. The purpose of 940 CMR 29.00 is to interpret, enforce and effectuate the purposes of the

Open Meeting Law, M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25.

(2) Severability. If any provision of 940 CMR 29.00 or the application of such provision to any person,

public body, or circumstances shall be held invalid, the validity of the remainder of 940 CMR 29.00 and

the applicability of such provision to other persons, public bodies, or circumstances shall not be affected

thereby.

(3) Mailing. All complaints, notices (except meeting notices) and other materials that must be sent to

another party shall be sent by one of the following means: first class mail, email, hand delivery, or by any

other means at least as expeditions as first class mail.

29.02: Definitions

As used in 940 CMR 29.00, the following terms shall, unless the context clearly requires otherwise, have

the following meanings:

County Public Body. A public body created by county government with jurisdiction that comprises a single

county.

District Public Body. A public body with jurisdiction that extends to two or more municipalities.

Emergency. A sudden, generally unexpected occurrence or set of circumstances demanding immediate

action.

36 I Page



Intentional Violation. An act or omission by a public body or a member thereof, in knowing violation of

M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25. Evidence of an intentional violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25

shall include, but not be limited to, the public body or public body member that:

(a) acted with specific intent to violate the law;

(b) acted with deliberate ignorance of the law's requirements; or

(c) was previously informed by receipt of a decision from a court of competent jurisdiction or advised

by the Attorney General, pursuant to 940 CMR 29.07 or 940 CMR 29.08, that the conduct violates M.G.L.

c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25. Where a public body or public body member has made a good faith attempt at

compliance with the law, but was reasonably mistaken about its requirements, such conduct will not be

considered an intentional violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25.

Person. All individuals and entities, including governmental officials and employees. Person does not

include public bodies.

Post Notice. To place a written announcement of a meeting on a bulletin board, electronic display,

website, or in a loose-leaf binder in a manner conspicuously visible to the public, including persons with

disabilities, at all hours, in accordance with 940 CMR 29.03.

Public Body. Has the identical meaning as set forth in M.G.L c. BOA, § 18, that is, a multiple-member

board, commission, committee or subcommittee within the executive or legislative branch or within any

county, district, city, region or town, however created, elected, appointed or otherwise constituted,

established to serve a public purpose; provided, however, that the governing board of a local housing,

redevelopment or other similar authority shall be deemed a local public body; provided, further, that the

governing board or body of any other authority established by the general court to serve a public purpose

in the commonwealth or any part thereof shall be deemed a state public body; provided, further, that

Public Body shall not include the general court or the committees or recess commissions thereof, bodies

of the judicial branch or bodies appointed by a constitutional officer solely for the purpose of advising a

constitutional officer and shall not include the board of bank incorporation or the policyholders protective

board; and provided further, that a subcommittee shall include any multiple-member body created to

advise or make recommendations to a public body.

Qualification for Office. The election or appointment of a person to a public body and the taking of the

oath of office, where required, and shall include qualification for a second or any subsequent term of

office. Where no term of office for a member of a public body is specified, the member shall be deemed

to be qualified for office on a biennial basis following appointment or election to office.

Regional Public Body. A public body with jurisdiction that extends to two or more municipalities.

Remote Participation. Participation by a member of a public body during a meeting of that public body

where the member is not physically present at the meeting location.

29.03: Notice PQStLng_Reqyirements

(1) Requirements Applicable to All Public Bodies.

(a) Except in an emergency, public bodies shall file meeting notices sufficiently in advance of a

public meeting to permit posting of the notice at least 48 hours in advance of the public

37 I P age



meeting, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays, in accordance with M.G.L c. 30A,

§ 20. In an emergency, the notice shall be posted as soon as reasonably possible prior to such

meeting.

(b) Meeting notices shall be printed or displayed in a legible, easily understandable format and

shall contain the date, time and place of such meeting, and a listing of topics that the chair

reasonably anticipates will be discussed at the meeting. The list of topics shall have sufficient

specificity to reasonably advise the public of the issues to be discussed at the meeting.

(c) Notices posted under an alternative posting method authorized by 940 CMR 29.03(2) through

(5) shall include the same content as required by940CMR29.03(l)(b). If such an alternative

posting method is adopted, the municipal clerk, in the case of a municipality, or the body, in

all other cases, shall file with the Attorney General written notice of adoption of the

alternative method, including the website address where applicable, and any change thereto,

and the most current notice posting method on file with the Attorney General shall be

consistently used.

(d) The date and time that a meeting notice is posted shall be conspicuously recorded thereon or

therewith. If an amendment occurs within 48 hours of a meeting, not including Saturdays,

Sundays, and legal holidays, then the date and time that the meeting notice is amended shall

also be conspicuously recorded thereon or therewith.

(2) Requirements Specific to Local Public Bodies.

(a) The official method of posting notice shall be by filing with the municipal clerk, or other person

designated by agreement with the municipal clerk, who shall post notice of the meeting in a

manner conspicuously visible to the public at all hours in, on, or near the municipal building

in which the clerk's office is located.

(b) Alternatively, the municipality may adopt the municipal website as the official method of

notice posting.

1. The Chief Executive Officer of the municipality, as defined in M.G.L. c. 4, § 7, must

authorize or, by a simple majority, vote to adopt the municipal website as the official

method of posting notice. Any municipality that has adopted its website as the official

method of posting notice by another method as of October 6, 2017 will have satisfied

the adoption requirement.

2. If adopted, a description of the website as the notice posting method, including

directions on how to locate notices on the website, shall be posted in a manner

conspicuously visible to the public at all hours on or adjacent to the main and

handicapped accessible entrances to the municipal building in which the clerk's office

is located.

3. Once adopted as the official method of notice posting, the website shall host the

official legal notice for meetings of all public bodies within the municipality.

4. Notices must continue to be filed with the municipal clerk, or any other person

designated by agreement with the municipal clerk.

(c) A municipality may have only one official notice posting method for the purpose of M.G.L.c.

BOA, §§ 18 through 25, either 940 CMR 29.03(2)(a) or (b). However, nothing precludes a

municipality from choosing to post additional notices via other methods, including a

newspaper. Such additional notice will not be the official notice for the purposes of M.G.L. c.

30A, §§ 18 through 25.

38 I Pa ge



(d) Copies of notices shall also be accessible to the public in the municipal clerk's office during

the clerk's business hours.

(3) Requirements Specific to Regional or District Public Bodies.

(a) Notice shall be filed and posted in each city and town within the region or district in the

manner prescribed for local public bodies in that city or town.

(b) As an alternative method of notice, a regional or district public body may, by majority vote,

adopt the regional or district public body's website as its official notice posting method. A

copy of each meeting notice shall be kept by the chair of the public body or the chair's

designee in accordance with the applicable records retention schedules. The public body shall

file and post notice of the website address, as well as directions on how to locate notices on

the website, in each city and town within the region or district in the manner prescribed for

local public bodies in that city or town.

(4) Requirements Specific to Regional School Districts.

(a) The secretary of the regional school district committee shall be considered to be its clerk. The

clerk of the regional school district committee shall file notice with the municipal clerk of each

city and town within such district and each such municipal clerk shall post the notice in the

manner prescribed for local public bodies in that city or town.

(b) As an alternative method of notice, a regional school district committee may, by majority

vote, adopt the regional school district's website as its official notice posting method. A copy

of each meeting notice shall be kept by the secretary of the regional school district committee

or the secretary's designee in accordance with the applicable records retention schedules.

The regional school district committee shall file and post notice of the website address, as

well as directions on how to locate notices on the website, in each city and town within the

region or district in the manner prescribed for local public bodies in that city or town.

(5) Requirements Specific to County Public Bodies.

(a) Notice shall be filed and posted in the office of the county commissioners and a copy of the

notice shall be publicly posted in a manner conspicuously visible to the public at all hours in

such place or places as the county commissioners shall designate for this purpose.

(b) As an alternative method of notice, a county public body may, by majority vote, adopt the

county public body's website as its official notice posting method. A copy of the notice shall

be kept by the chair of the county public body or the chair's designee in accordance with the

applicable records retention schedules. The county public body shall file and post notice of

the website address, as well as directions on how to locate notices on the website, in the

office of the county commissioners and a copy of the notice shall be publicly posted in a

manner conspicuously visible to the public at all hours in such place or places as the county

commissioners shall designate for this purpose.

(6) Requirements Specific to State Public Bodies. Notice shall be posted on a website. A copy of each

notice shall also be sent by first class or electronic mail to the Secretary of the Commonwealth's

Regulations Division. The chair of each state public body shall notify the Attorney General in writing of its

webpage for listing meeting notices and any change to the webpage location. The public body shall

consistently use the most current website location on file with the Attorney General. A copy of the notice

39 I P age



shall be kept by the chair of the state public body or the chair's designee in accordance with the applicable

records retention schedules.

(7) Websites. Where a public body adopts a website as its method of noticing meetings, it must make

every effort to ensure that the website is accessible to the public at all hours. If a website becomes

inaccessible to members of the public within 48 hours of a meeting, not including Saturdays, Sundays, and

legal holidays, the municipal clerk or other individual responsible for posting notice to the website must

restore the website to accessibility within six hours of the time, during regular business hours, when such

individual discovers that the website has become inaccessible. In the event that the website is not

restored to accessibility within six business hours of the website's deficiency being discovered, the public

body must re-post notice of its meeting for another date and time in accordance with M.G.L. c. 30A, §

20(b).

29.04: Certification

(1) For local public bodies, the municipal clerk, and for all other public bodies, the appointing authority,

executive director, or other appropriate administrator or their designees, shall, upon a public body

member's qualification for office, either deliver to the public body member, or require the public body

member to obtain from the Attorney General's website, the following educational materials:

(a) The Attorney General's Open Meeting Law Guide, which will include an explanation of the

requirements of the Open Meeting Law; the Open Meeting Law, M.G.L. c. BOA, §§ 18 through

25; and 940 CMR 29.00.

(b) A copy of each Open Meeting Law determination issued to that public body by the Attorney

General within the last five years in which the Attorney General found a violation of M.G.L.c.

30A, §§ 18 through 25. Open Meeting Law determinations are available at the Attorney

General's website.

(2) Educational materials may be delivered to public body members by paper copy or in digital form.

(3) Within two weeks after receipt of the educational materials, the public body member shall certify, on

the form prescribed by the Attorney General, receipt of the educational materials. The municipal clerk,

appointing authority, executive director or other appropriate administrator, or their designees, shall

maintain the signed certification for each such person, indicating the date the person received the

materials.

(4) An individual serving on multiple public bodies must sign a certification for each public body on which

he or she serves. A public body member does not need to sign a separate certification when joining a

subcommittee of the public body.

(5) A public body member must sign a new certification upon reelection or reappointment to the public

body.

29.05: Complaints

(1) All complaints shall be in writing, using the form approved by the Attorney General and available on

the Attorney General's website. A public body need not, and the Attorney General will not, investigate or

address anonymous complaints. A public body need not address a complaint that is not signed by the

40 I P age



complainant. A public body need not address a complaint that is not filed using the Attorney General's

complaint form.

(2) Public bodies, or the municipal clerk in the case of a local public body, should provide any person, on

request, with an Open Meeting Law Complaint Form. If a paper copy is unavailable, then the public body

should direct the requesting party to the Attorney General's website, where an electronic copy of the

form will be available for downloading and printing.

(3) For local public bodies, the complainant shall file the complaint with the chair of the public body, who

shall disseminate copies of the complaint to the members of the public body. The complainant shall also

file a copy of the complaint with the municipal clerk, who shall keep such filings in an orderly fashion for

public review on request during regular business hours. For all other public bodies, the complainant shall

file the complaint with the chair of the relevant public body, or if there is no chair, then with the public

body.

(4) The complaint shall be filed within 30 days of the alleged violation ofM.G.L. c. BOA, §§ 18 through 25

or, if the alleged violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25 could not reasonably have been known at

the time it occurred, then within 30 days of the date it should reasonably have been discovered.

(5) Within 14 business days after receiving the complaint, unless an extension has been granted by the

Attorney General as provided in 940 CM R29.05(5)(b), the public body shall meet to review the complaint's

allegations; take remedial action, if appropriate; and send to the complainant a response and a description

of any remedial action taken. The public body shall simultaneously notify the Attorney General that it has

sent such materials to the complainant and shall provide the Attorney General with a copy of the

complaint, the response, and a description of any remedial action taken.

(a) Any remedial action taken by the public body in response to a complaint under 940 CMR

29.05(5) shall not be admissible as evidence that a violation occurred in any later

administrative or judicial proceeding against the public body relating to the alleged violation.

(b) If the public body requires additional time to resolve the complaint, it may obtain an extension

from the Attorney General by submitting a written request within 14 business days after

receiving the complaint. A request may be submitted by the chair, the public body's attorney,

or any person designated by the public body or the chair. The Attorney General will grant an

extension if the request demonstrates good cause. Good cause will generally be found if, for

example, the public body cannot meet within the 14 business day period to consider proposed

remedial action. The Attorney General shall notify the complainant of any extension and the

reason for it.

(6) If the public body needs additional information to resolve the complaint, then the chair may request

it from the complainant within seven business days of receiving the complaint. The complainant shall

respond within ten business days after receiving the request. The public body will then have an additional

ten business days after receiving the complainant's response to review the complaint and take any

remedial action pursuant to 940 CMR 29.05(5).

(7) If at least 30 days have passed after the complaint was filed with the public body, and if the

complainant is unsatisfied with the public body's resolution of the complaint, the complainant may file a

complaint with the Attorney General. When filing a complaint with the Attorney General, the complainant

shall include a copy of the original complaint along with any other materials the complainant believes are

41 I P age



relevant. The Attorney General shall decline to investigate complaints filed with the Attorney General

more than 90 days after the alleged violation of M.6.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25, or if the alleged violation

of M.G.L. c. BOA, §§ 18 through 25, could not reasonably have been known at the time it occurred, then

within 90 days of the date it should reasonably have been discovered. However, this time may be

extended if the Attorney General grants an extension to the public body to respond to a complaint or if

the complainant demonstrates good cause for the delay in filing with the Attorney General.

(8) The Attorney General shall acknowledge receipt of all complaints and will resolve them within a

reasonable period of time, generally 90 days.

(9) Mediation to Resolve a Complaint.

(a) If a complainant files five complaints alleging violations of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25,

with the same public body or within the same municipality within 12 months, upon the fifth

or subsequent complaint to that public body or a public body within that municipality within

the 12-month period, the public body may request mediation with the complainant, at the

public body's expense, to resolve the complaint. A mediator is defined by M.G.L. c. 233, §

23C, and will be selected by the Attorney General.

(b) A public body must request mediation prior to, or with, its response to the complaint. If the

mediation does not produce an agreement, the public body will have ten business days from

the last joint meeting with the mediator to respond to the complaint.

(c) A public body may participate in mediation in open session, in executive session through

M.G.L. c. BOA, § 21(a)(9), or by designating a representative to participate on behalf of the

public body.

(d) If the complainant declines to participate in mediation after a public body's request in

accordance with 940 CMR 29.05(9)(a), the Attorney General may decline to review the

complaint if it is thereafter filed with the Attorney General.

(e) If the mediation does not resolve the complaint to the satisfaction of both parties, then the

complainant may file a copy of his or her complaint with the Attorney General and request

the Attorney General's review. The complaint must be filed with the Attorney General within

30 days of the last joint meeting with the mediator.

(f) Any written agreement reached in mediation shall become a public record in its entirety and

must be publicly disclosed at the next meeting of the public body following execution of the

agreement.

(g) Nothing in 940 CMR 29.05(9) shall prevent a complainant from filing subsequent complaints,

however public bodies may continue to request mediation in an effort to resolve complaints

in accordance with 940 CMR 29.05(9)(a).

(h) Nothing in 940 CMR 29.05(9) shall prevent a public body or complainant from seeking
mediation to resolve any complaint. However, only mediation requests that follow the

requirements of 940 CMR 29.05(9)(a) will trigger the application of 940 CMR 29.05(9)(d).

29,06: Investigation

Following a timely complaint filed pursuant to 940 CMR 29.05, where the Attorney General has reasonable

cause to believe that a violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25 has occurred, then the Attorney

General may conduct an investigation.

42 I P age



(1) The Attorney General shall notify the public body or person that is the subject of a complaint of the

existence of the investigation within a reasonable period of time. The Attorney General shall also notify

the public body or person of the nature of the alleged violation.

(2) Upon notice of the investigation, the subject of the investigation shall provide the Attorney General

with all information relevant to the investigation. The subject may also submit a memorandum or other

writing to the Attorney General addressing the allegations being investigated.

If the subject of the investigation fails to voluntarily provide the necessary or relevant information

within 30 days of receiving notice of the investigation, the Attorney General may issue one or more civil

investigative demands to obtain the information in accordance with M.G.L. c. 30A, § 24(a), to:

(a) Take testimony under oath;

(b) Examine or cause to be examined any documentary material; or

(c) Require attendance during such examination of documentary material by any person having

knowledge of the documentary material and take testimony under oath or acknowledgment

in respect of any such documentary material.

Any documentary material or other information produced by any person pursuant to 940 CMR 29.06

shall not, unless otherwise ordered by a court of the Commonwealth for good cause shown, be disclosed

without that person's consent by the Attorney General to any person other than the Attorney General's

authorized agent or representative. However, the Attorney General may disclose the material in court

pleadings or other papers filed in court; or, to the extent necessary, in an administrative hearing or in a

written determination to resolve the investigation pursuant to 940 CMR 29.07.

29.07: Resolution

(1) No Violation. If the Attorney General determines after investigation that M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through

25 has not been violated, the Attorney General shall issue a written determination to the subject of the

complaint and copy any complainant.

(2) Violation Resolved Without Hearing. If the Attorney General determines after investigation that

M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25 has been violated, the Attorney General may resolve the investigation

without a hearing. The Attorney General shall determine whether the relevant public body, one or more

of its members, or both, were responsible. The Attorney General will notify in writing any complainant of

the investigation's resolution. Upon finding a violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25, the Attorney

General may take one of the following actions:

(a) Informal Action. The Attorney General may resolve the investigation with a letter or other

appropriate form of written communication that explains the violation and clarifies the

subject's obligations under M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25, providing the subject with a

reasonable period of time to comply with any outstanding obligations.

(b) Formal Order. The Attorney General may resolve the investigation with a formal order. The

order may require:

1. immediate and future compliance with M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25;

2. attendance at a training session authorized by the Attorney General;

3. nullification of any action taken at the relevant meeting, in whole or in part;

4. that minutes, records or other materials be made public;

5. that an employee be reinstated without loss of compensation, seniority, tenure or

other benefits; or

6. other appropriate action.

43 I P age



(c) Orders shall be available on the Attorney General's website.

(3) Violation Resolved After Hearing. The Attorney General may conduct a hearing where the Attorney

General deems appropriate. The hearing shall be conducted pursuant to 801 CMR 1.00: Formal Rules, as

modified by any regulations issued by the Attorney General. At the conclusion of the hearing, the Attorney

General shall determine whether a violation of M.G.L. c. BOA, §§ 18 through 25 occurred, and whether

the public body, one or more of its members, or both, were responsible. The Attorney General will notify

in writing any complainant of the investigation's resolution. Upon a finding that a violation occurred, the

Attorney General may order:

(a) immediate and future compliance with M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25;

(b) attendance at a training session authorized by the Attorney General;

(c) nullification of any action taken at the relevant meeting, in whole or in part;

(d) imposition of a fine upon the public body of not more than $1,000 for each intentional

violation; however, a fine will not be imposed where a public body or public body member

acted in good faith compliance with the advice of the public body's legal counsel, in

accordance with M.G.L. BOA, § 23(g);

(e) that an employee be reinstated without loss of compensation, seniority, tenure or other

benefits;

(f) that minutes, records or other materials be made public; or

(g) other appropriate action.

Orders issued following a hearing shall be available on the Attorney General's website.

(4) A public body, subject to an order of the Attorney General following a written determination issued

pursuant to 940 CMR 29.07, shall notify the Attorney General in writing of its compliance with the order

within 30 days of receipt of the order, unless otherwise indicated by the order itself. A public body need

not notify the Attorney General of its compliance with an order requiring immediate and future

compliance pursuant to 940 CMR 29.07(2)(b)l. or 940 CMR 29.07(3)(a).

(5) A public body or any member of a body aggrieved by any order issued by the Attorney General under

940 CMR 29.07 may obtain judicial review of the order through an action in Superior Court seeking relief

in the nature of certiorari. Any such action must be commenced in Superior Court within 21 days of receipt

of the order.

29.08: Advisory Opinions

The Attorney General will generally not issue advisory opinions. However, the Attorney General may issue

written guidance to address common requests for interpretation. Such written guidance will appear on

the Attorney General's website.

2 9.09: Other Enforcement Act i o ns

Nothing in 940 CMR 29.06 or 29.07 shall limit the Attorney General's authority to file a civil action to

enforce M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25 pursuant to M.G.L. c. 30A, § 23(f).

29.10: Remote Participation

44 I P age



(1) Preamble. Remote participation may be permitted subject to the following procedures and

restrictions. However, the Attorney General strongly encourages members of public bodies to physically

attend meetings whenever possible. By promulgating 940 CMR 29.10, the Attorney General hopes to

promote greater participation in government. Members of public bodies have a responsibility to ensure

that remote participation in meetings is not used in a way that would defeat the purposes of M.G.L. c.

BOA, §§ 18 through 25, namely promoting transparency with regard to deliberations and decisions on

which public policy is based.

(2) Adoption of Remote Participation. Remote participation in meetings of public bodies is not permitted

unless the practice has been adopted as follows:

(a) Local Public Bodies. The Chief Executive Officer, as defined in M.G.L. c. 4, § 7, must authorize

or, by a simple majority, vote to allow remote participation in accordance with the

requirements of 940 CMR 29.10, with that authorization or vote applying to all subsequent

meetings of all local public bodies in that municipality.

(b) Regional or District Public Bodies. The regional or district public body must, by a simple

majority, vote to allow remote participation in accordance with the requirements of 940 CMR

29.10, with that vote applying to all subsequent meetings of that public body and its

committees.

(c) Regional School Districts. The regional school district committee must, by a simple majority,

vote to allow remote participation in accordance with the requirements of 940 CMR 29.10,

with that vote applying to all subsequent meetings of that public body and its committees.

(d) County Public Bodies. The county commissioners must, by a simple majority, vote to allow

remote participation in accordance with the requirements of 940 CMR 29.10, with that vote

applying to all subsequent meetings of all county public bodies in that county.

(e) State Public Bodies. The state public body must, by a simple majority, vote to allow remote

participation in accordance with the requirements of 940 CMR 29.10, with that vote applying

to all subsequent meetings of that public body and its committees.

(f) Retirement Boards. A retirement board created pursuant to M.G.L. c. 32, § 20 or M.G.L. c.

34B, § 19 must, by a simple majority, vote to allow remote participation in accordance with

the requirements of 940 CMR 29.10, with that vote applying to all subsequent meetings of

that public body and its committees.

(g) Local Commissions on Disability. In accordance with M.G.L. c. BOA, § 20(e), a local commission

on disability may, by majority vote of the commissioners at a regular meeting, authorize

remote participation applicable to a specific meeting or generally to all of the commission's

meetings. If a local commission on disability is authorized to utilize remote participation, a

physical quorum of that commission's members shall not be required to be present at the

meeting location; provided, however, that the chair or, in the chair's absence, the person

authorized to chair the meeting, shall be physically present at the meeting location. The

commission shall comply with all other requirements of law.

(3) Revocation of Remote Participation. Any person or entity with the authority to adopt remote

participation pursuant to 940 CMR 29.10(2) may revoke that adoption in the same manner.

(4) Minimum Requirements for Remote Participation.

(a) Members of a public body who participate remotely and all persons present at the meeting

location shall be clearly audible to each other as required by M.G.L. c. 30A, § 20(d);

45 I P age



(b) A quorum of the body, including the chair or, in the chair's absence, the person authorized to

chair the meeting, shall be physically present at the meeting location as required by M.G.L. c.

30A, § 20(d);
(c) Members of public bodies who participate remotely may vote and shall not be deemed absent

for the purposes of M.G.L. c. 39, § 23D.

(5) Permissible Reason for Remote Participation. If remote participation has been adopted in accordance

with 940 CMR 29.10(2), a member of a public body shall be permitted to participate remotely in a meeting

in accordance with the procedures described in 940 CMR 29.10(7) only if physical attendance would be

unreasonably difficult.

(6) Technology.

(a) The following media are acceptable methods for remote participation. Remote participation

by any other means is not permitted. Accommodations shall be made for any public body

member who requires TTY service, video relay service, or other form of adaptive

telecommunications.

1. telephone, internet, or satellite enabled audio or video conferencing;

2. any other technology that enables the remote participant and all persons present at

the meeting location to be clearly audible to one another.

(b) When video technology is in use, the remote participant shall be clearly visible to all persons

present in the meeting location.

(c) The public body shall determine which of the acceptable methods may be used by its

members.

(d) The chair or, in the chair's absence, the person chairing the meeting, may decide how to

address technical difficulties that arise as a result of utilizing remote participation, but is

encouraged wherever possible to suspend discussion while reasonable efforts are made to

correct any problem that interferes with a remote participant's ability to hear or be heard

clearly by all persons present at the meeting location. If technical difficulties result in a

remote participant being disconnected from the meeting, that fact and the time at which the

disconnection occurred shall be noted in the meeting minutes.

(e) The amount and source of payment for any costs associated with remote participation shall

be determined by the applicable adopting entity identified in 940 CMR 29.10(2).

(7) Procedures for Remote Participation.

(a) Any member of a public body who wishes to participate remotely shall, as soon as reasonably

possible prior to a meeting, notify the chair or, in the chair's absence, the person chairing the

meeting, of his or her desire to do so and the reason for and facts supporting his or her

request.

(b) At the start of the meeting, the chair shall announce the name of any member who will be

participating remotely. This information shall also be recorded in the meeting minutes.

(c) All votes taken during any meeting in which a member participates remotely shall be by roll

call vote.

(d) A member participating remotely may participate in an executive session, but shall state at

the start of any such session that no other person is present and/or able to hear the discussion

at the remote location, unless presence of that person is approved by a simple majority vote

of the public body.

46 I P age



(e) When feasible, the chair or, in the chair's absence, the person chairing the meeting, shall

distribute to remote participants in advance of the meeting, copies of any documents or

exhibits that he or she reasonably anticipates will be used during the meeting. If used during

the meeting, such documents shall be part of the official record of the meeting and shall be

listed in the meeting minutes and retained in accordance with M.G.L. c. 30A, § 22.

(8) Further Restriction by AdoptinR Authority. 940 CMR 29.10 does not prohibit any person or entity

with the authority to adopt remote participation pursuant to 940 CMR 29.10(2) from enacting policies,

laws, rules or regulations that prohibit or further restrict the use of remote participation by public bodies

within that person or entity's jurisdiction, provided those policies, laws, rules or regulations do not violate

state or federal law.

(9) Remedy for Violation. If the Attorney General determines after investigation that 940 CM R 29.10 has

been violated, the Attorney General may resolve the investigation by ordering the public body to

temporarily or permanently discontinue its use of remote participation.

29.11: Meeting Minutes

(1) A public body shall create and maintain accurate minutes of all meetings including executive sessions,

setting forth the date, time and place, the members present or absent, a summary of the discussions on

each subject, a list of documents and other exhibits used at the meeting, the decisions made and the

actions taken at each meeting, including the record of all votes in accordance with M.G.L. c. 30A, § 22(a).

(2) Minutes of all open and executive sessions shall be created and approved in a timely manner. A

"timely manner" will generally be considered to be within the next three public body meetings or within

30 days, whichever is later, unless the public body can show good cause for further delay. The Attorney

General encourages public bodies to approve minutes at the next meeting whenever possible.

REGULATORY AUTHORITY

940 CMR 29.00: M.G.L. c. 30A, § 25(a) and (b).

47 I P age



Certificate of Receipt of Meeting

_, who qualified as a member of the

(Name)

_, on _, certify pursuant
(Public Body) (Date)

to G.L. c. 30A, § 20(h) and 940 CMR 29.04, that I have received and reviewed copies of the following

Open Meeting Law materials:

1) the Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18-25;

2) the Attorney General's Regulations, 940 CMR 29.00-29.11;

3) the Attorney General's Open Meeting Law Guide, explaining the Open Meeting Law and its

application; and

4) if applicable, a copy of each Open Meeting Law determination issued by the Attorney

General within the last five (5) years to the public body of which I am a member and in

which the Attorney General found a violation of the Open Meeting Law.

I have read and understand the requirements of the Open Meeting Law and the consequences of

violating it. I further understand that the materials I have received may be revised or updated from time

to time, and that I have a continuing obligation to implement any changes to the Open Meeting Law

during my term of office.

(Name)

(Name of Public Body)

(Date)

Pursuant to G.L. c. 30A, § 20(h), an executed copy of this certificate shall be retained, according to the relevant

records retention schedule, by the appointing authority, city or town clerk, or the executive director or other

appropriate administrator of a state or regional body, or their designee.

48 I P age



Guide for Members of Public

Boards and Commissions

How to be an Effective
Member of a Public Board

or Commission

^^usSoJ^'

Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Office of the Inspector General

Glenn A. Cunha

Inspector General

December 2017 Edition



Table of Contents

Guide for Members of Public Boards and Commissions.......................................................... 1

Practices for Effective Board Members .................................................................................. 2

1. Learn about the public organization................................................................................... 2

2. Educate yourself about the role of your board (and your role as a board member)........... 3

3. Uphold fiduciary principles and act in the best interests of the public organization .......... 4

4. Exercise care when making decisions and voting by informing yourself, asking

questions and expecting answers ........................................................................................ 4

5. Actively oversee the executive who leads the organization ............................................... 5

6. Actively monitor and protect public expenditures.............................................................. 7

7. Consider your ethical responsibilities and follow the Massachusetts
conflict-of-interest law........................................................................................................ 8

8. Operate in compliance with the Massachusetts open meeting law..................................... 9

9. Ensure that you operate in compliance with the Massachusetts public records law ........ 11

10. Detect and report suspected fraud, wrongdoing or other misuse of public resources:

If you see something, say something................................................................................ 12

Conclusion........................................................................................................................... 14

Appendix A: Sources of Advice and Assistance..................................................................... 15

Appendix B: Reasons for Entering Executive Session............................................................ 16

i I Page



Guide for Members of Public Boards and Commissions

Congratulations on your appointment to a public board or commission ("public board"). Your

service to the citizens of Massachusetts is essential to good government. Thank you for your

commitment to fulfilling your duties and responsibilities as a public board member.

Public boards take many forms. Some provide direct oversight to a state, county or local

governmental entity (collectively, a "public organization"). Other boards set policy for their

public organization and some make advisory recommendations. Still others perform a

combination of these functions.

Whether you serve on a state, county or local board,

you support a public organization that provides public
services with public funds. Your work is important,

whether you are advising your public organization on

policy matters, approving salaries, reviewing the

budget, or assessing the executive director's

performance. Your participation, insights and

engagement as a citizen and active decision-maker

are essential to ensuring that your public organization

fulfills its mission and uses public resources

appropriately.

Who should use this guide?

// your board has a role in overseeing the

public official leading a public organization -

or if your board provides input on a public

program, the use of public funds or the care

of public property - you should read this

guide. Similarly, if you are a member of a

board that provides advice or

recommendations to a public organization,

this guide will help you fulfill your duties as a
board member.

This guide outlines practices, such as upholding fiduciary principles, that will help you

effectively perform your role. It also provides an overview of the laws that apply to your

position. These laws relate to the meetings your board holds, your official acts and

communications, and your individual conduct. These laws serve to promote open, transparent

and accountable government, all of which are essential elements to our representative

democracy.

Use this guide to understand your obligations and to

help you perform your duties as a public board member

to the best of your abilities. The appendix at the end of

this guide contains additional resources, including

contact information for state agencies that interpret

and enforce the laws applicable to you and your board.

Thank you again for your commitment to fulfilling your

duties and responsibilities as a public board member.

Public boards take many forms, such as:

• Public university boards of

trustees

• Redevelopment authority boards

of trustees

• Municipal light department
boards of commissioners

• Housing authority boards

• Town finance committees

• Library boards of trustees

• Municipal select boards

• Economic development

authorities

1 I Pa



Practices for Effective Board Members

The following practices will help you succeed in fulfilling your obligations as a public board

member.

1. Learn about the public organization.

When you are first appointed, get to know the public organization you serve. Learn about the

public organization's mandate or mission, which may be found in state law or a local ordinance.

A public organization's mandate often identifies the scope of its authority to carry out its public

purpose or service, as well as any procedures governing how it achieves its mission and any

regulations or by-laws that its officers or appointees must follow.

In addition, learn about how the public organization fulfills its mission. Read about the

programs it operates and the segments of the public it serves. Ask for past annual reports and

budgets, as well as a current organizational chart. Learn about recent achievements and

upcoming initiatives or special projects.

Ask:

• What is the public organization's mission or mandate?

• What rules, regulations or by-laws govern the public organization, if any?

Delve deeper and ask:

• How does the organization carry out its mission or purpose?

• How is the organization structured?

• What is the organization's annual budget? Who sets the budget and who decides

how it is spent?

• Who are the senior officials in the organization and what are their roles?

• What are the major projects or objectives that the public organization is considering

over the next few years? What will be the projected cost of these projects?

• Are the proposed projects and objectives consistent with the mission of the public

organization and with the organization's budget and other priorities?

The answers to these questions will help you understand how the public organization operates

and will enable you to become an effective and involved board member.

The State Auditor conducts periodic audits of state agencies, quasi-state agencies and housing

authorities. If you serve on such a board, check the State Auditor's website, available at

www.mass.gov/auditor, for audit reports on your public organization.

2 I Page



2. Educate yourself about the role of your board (and your role as a board member).

In order to be an effective public board member, you need to understand your board's role

with respect to the public organization. Some boards provide

direct oversight to ensure that the public organization operates

effectively and in accordance with its mandate, while others

work in an advisory capacity to help guide a public organization
toward particular goals and outcomes. The board's role is

usually set out in a statute, local ordinance or other enabling

document.

You should understand the

board's role and responsibilities

in order to guide the public
organization toward the

realization of its mission, goals

and objectives.

Ask:

• What is the scope of the board's authority and what is the source of that authority?

• What matters typically come before the board?

• Based on the board's role with respect to the organization, are there other matters

that should be brought before the board?

You should also understand how the board operates, including how often it meets, how the

agenda is established and the procedures that govern the meetings. As a starting point, read

the meeting minutes from at least the past four board meetings.

Ask:

How often does the board meet? Is the

board required to meet on a specific schedule

and, if yes, what is that schedule?

Who sets the agenda for the meetings? Can

board members submit topics for the

agenda?

Does your board follow written procedures for meetings, such as Robert's Rules of

Order?

How does the board vote? Are all votes conducted in the same manner?

Public boards should meet regularly to

facilitate open, vigorous and in-depth

discussions in compliance with the

Massachusetts Open Meeting Law,

which is outlined later in this guide.

Furthermore, take steps to learn how the chairperson

and other officers are selected, if there are limits for

serving as an officer and whether your board may

establish committees. Request lists of all current board

members and committees.

Ask:

Your board may find it helpful to adopt a
set of written operating procedures,

including for the conduct of meetings,

term limits and leadership appointments,

if they are not already in place.

• How are officers selected?

• Does the board have committees and if so, how are members selected to serve on

them?

3|Page



• Are there term limits for officers, board members or committee members?

3. Uphold fiduciary principles and act in the best interests of the public organization.

In some instances, the law may consider you a fiduciary. A fiduciary is someone who owes a

particular duty of care, known as a fiduciary duty, to an entity or individual - in this case, a

public organization. A fiduciary duty requires an individual to act with good faith, loyalty and

due care. A fiduciary must act in the best interests of the public organization.

Even if you are not a fiduciary under the law, fiduciary

principles should guide the decisions that you and your

board make. Adhering to fiduciary principles will help
^; one who owes to another

the board recognize that it is a steward of the public | '^"^^'^^'^'^.^
the duties of good faith, loyalty, due care,

A fiduciary is "someone who is required

to act for the benefit of another person

on a// matters within the scope of their

and disclosure." Black's Law Dictionary

10th ed. (2014).

funds entrusted to the organization, and that the board

plays a vital role in ensuring the public organization

fulfills its mission. As part of upholding fiduciary principles, the board should always act

independently, with care and in the best interests of the organization.

Board members who adhere to the fiduciary principles will be active participants in board

matters, will stay informed and will act in the best interests of the organization. Fiduciary

principles remind the board that it must act on behalf of the
Using fiduciary principles as the
framework for your board will

result In an active, well-informed

assists the organization in

achieving its mission.

organization, not its executive. They will lead the board to

actively oversee the executive and to expect accountability

b^:^ac^JnJhL^b!ic, I from the executive, which will help the public organization
organization's best interests and

operate effectively, transparently and in accordance with its

mission.

4. Exercise care when making decisions and voting by informing yourself, asking questions

and expecting answers.

To be an active and effective board member, you must be informed. Consequently, before

your board meets, arm yourself with accurate information to make thoughtful decisions. Take

time to prepare for meetings in advance; read the materials that are distributed and think

about the issues on the agenda.

Ask:

How far in advance does the board receive meeting materials so that you can

properly prepare for pending actions before voting on a matter before the board?

What is the procedure for requesting the organization to provide additional

information, either in advance of or at a meeting?

4 I Pa ge



• What is the procedure for asking individuals from the organization to attend the

meeting to provide additional information?

Public discourse, analysis and debate are expected, whether public board members are trustees

of a public college or commissioners of a local housing authority. When your board meets, ask

probing questions that are relevant to the issue and debate the issue at hand during meetings

to get information that will help you make informed decisions. If the chair of the board or an

official in the organization does not provide you with the necessary information to make an

informed decision, ask for it. If you do not receive the information you need, ask to change the

date of the vote.

Before voting on a matter, ask probing questions, such as:

• What statutes or regulations apply to the requested action?

• What internal procedures apply to the requested action and were those procedures

followed?

• Does the requested action align with the public organization's mission,

responsibilities, priorities and budget?

• Do you need additional data so that you can make an informed decision?

• Do you need to hear from others in the organization? For instance, does legal

counsel or human resources have information necessary to make this decision?

Finally, exercise your own judgment and always act in the best interests of the public

organization. Do not allow yourself to be marginalized by an executive or fellow board member

who may assert knowledge or expertise above yours or who simply does not agree with you.

Do not rubber stamp official acts that come before your public board - your work is important

and you need to be informed.

5. Actively oversee the executive who leads the organization.

It is likely that your public organization is run by an executive, such as a public college

president, a director or other professional, and that your board is responsible for overseeing

the executive. If so, respect the trust the taxpayers placed in you. While you do not want to

interfere with the day-to-day management of the public organization, you do want to make

certain that the executive's actions align with the objectives of the public organization. The

executive reports to you and is accountable to the board. Be an active overseer.

Expect the executive to timely inform the board of major projects, expenditures and initiatives.

Use board meetings to discuss substantive issues with the executive, such as budget planning,

capital projects and significant policy matters. Ask questions, seek clarification and get back-up

documentation. Collaboration with the executive will require open communication and

information-sharing.

5 I Page



Ask:

• What are the executive's objectives and priorities for the organization?

• Do these objectives align with the organization's mission and values?

• What are the financial costs of achieving these objectives?

To help both the executive and the organization, your board should conduct an annual

performance evaluation of the executive. It also must establish a system to track and account

for the executive's vacation, sick and work time. Both the performance assessment and the

mechanism used to account for the executive's time should be established in writing. The

board also should ensure that the organization can track other expenses and requests for

reimbursements.

The board should approve the executive's expenses and reimbursements (at least those above

a certain dollar threshold). This includes reviewing the back-up documentation for the

executive's expenses and reimbursements. Staff who report to the executive are not in a

position to question the executive's performance, expenditures or conduct; the board's

independence and oversight in this regard are therefore critical.

Similarly, perform your due diligence before signing the
executive's contract - whether it is the executive's first

contract or a renewal. Your board should do its own,

independent research to ensure that the salary and

other benefits offered, including vacation time, sick

leave and other fringe benefits, are reasonable and

consistent with standard practices. Make sure that they

are comparable to those of other executives with like experience and expertise who work in

similar public settings. And very importantly, ensure that the compensation is consistent with

the public organization's budgetary commitments.

Be clear about time expectations. If the

executive must devote his full time and

attention to the public organization,

make that explicit in the contract. If the

position is part-time, the contract should

clearly set out time and attendance

requirements.

Information about state salaries is

accessible online through CTHRU,

available at www.macomptroller.org.

Finally, apply the same due diligence if you have to

recruit a new executive for the public organization.

Conduct an appropriate search that provides you with a

talented applicant pool. As part of the selection process,

speak with references and conduct a background check.

Ask:

What is the organization's budget for the

executive's salary?

How much time is the executive required to

devote to the public organization?

How does the organization document and verify

the executive's work, vacation and sick leave

hours?

Consider establishing an independent

audit committee that reports to the

board. Among other duties, the

committee could periodically audit

reimbursements and expenses at the

executive level.

6 I P age



• What is the public organization's expense reimbursement policy? Is it consistent

with the public organization's mission and objectives? Does it clearly define how the

executive's expenses are reviewed and approved?

• Do the executive's reimbursement requests match legitimate expenses related to

the public organization's public purpose?

6. Actively monitor and protect public expenditures.

Your board may be responsible for approving budgets, capital projects and other expenditures.

If that is the case, your public board ensures that a public organization utilizes its finite public

resources wisely and complies with the laws that govern the use of those resources. You are

the steward of those resources as a public board member.

As a starting point, learn to read a financial statement. You do not need to be an accounting

expert, but understanding financial statements is essential to ensuring that your organization is

using its public resources appropriately. If accounting is not your area of expertise, consider

asking a professional from within the organization to give the board a tutorial on reading

financial statements. Be sure to not only look at the figures in the financial statement, but also

be sure to review the accounting firm's notes regarding litigation and other matters that may

affect the financial soundness of the organization. Also, when financial material is presented at

a board meeting, ask questions to clarify any unclear information. Chances are high that if you

are uncertain about the information, other board members are, too.

You also should understand the public bidding laws that apply to your organization. In

Massachusetts, many public organizations must follow particular laws and procedures before

undertaking construction projects; buying supplies, services and real property; or disposing of

surplus supplies and property. The Legislature designed these laws to ensure that all qualified

vendors have a fair and equal opportunity to compete for public contracts and that taxpayer

money is spent wisely. To the extent you can, educate yourself or obtain training on these

laws. Additional resources to help you understand these laws are available in Appendix A at the

end of this guide.

Ask:

What laws must the public organization follow related to purchasing or disposing of

goods, services and real property?

What laws must the public organization

follow in connection with construction

projects?

What are the public organization's written

procurement policies?

What audit procedures are in place to

The Office of the Inspector General
provides several resources, including

procurement charts and manuals, to help

you understand public bidding and
construction laws. For more information,

please visit the Office's website, available

at www.mass.gov/ig.

ensure that the organization is complying with state law and its internal procedures?

7|Page



At the state level, the Massachusetts Comptroller maintains "CTHRU," a comprehensive

electronic database of state expenditures, including state salaries and payments made to

vendors by state agencies. Use this database, available at www.macomptroller.org, to learn

more about your agency's expenditures or to compare your organization's expenses to other

public organizations.

If you are a member of a local board that serves a local public organization, inquire about

whether there is an electronic resource similar to "CTHRU," so that you may have more

information at your fingertips about the budget, salaries and spending of the organization.

Armed with this information you will be able to make meaningful determinations about

financial matters that come before your board.

7. Consider your ethical responsibilities and follow the Massachusetts conflict-of-interest

law.

As a public board member, you likely are subject to the state's conflict-of-interest law, which is

designed to ensure that all public employees act for the benefit of the public organization, free

from personal bias or gain. The law impacts your conduct as a board member, as well as

certain activities you undertake separate from your board membership. For instance, the law:

• Restricts you from discussing or voting on matters in which you or an immediate

family member, or your private business has a financial interest.

• Restricts you from accepting gifts and gratuities, if given because of some official act

or because of official position, even if the gift or gratuity would not influence your

actions as a board member.

• Requires you to disclose in writing any appearances of a conflict of interest prior to

performing your official duties, and prohibits favoritism toward a family member or

friend or bias against a business associate.

• Restricts you from representing business or other interests before your board.

The law also requires you to:

Complete training on the conflict-of-interest

law. You have to acknowledge receiving a

summary of the conflict-of-interest law every

year and complete the Ethics Commission's

free, online training program within 30 days

after your appointment.

File disclosures in certain instances involving

actual and potential conflicts of interest.

You must acknowledge receipt of the

conflict-of-interest summary annually

and complete the online training

program every two years. If you have

not taken the training, contact the

Ethics Commission (see Appendix A) or
the individual or office that appointed
you.

Keep the conflict-of-interest law especially in mind when your board deliberates or votes on an

issue. Your vote matters. It is an official act and your decisions or deliberations must be

8 IPag e



The Ethics Commission

provides free advice to all

public employees on the

conflict-of-interest laws. Its

website, available at

www.mass.gov/ethics, also

contains helpful advisories,

guides and rulings.

independent and free from personal bias, personal gain and

personal advantage. When you believe there may be a conflict

between your official duties and your personal interest, at a

minimum you must disclose that conflict. Disclosure forms and

instructions are available on the Ethics Commission's website.

You must abstain or recuse yourself from a matter under

consideration by your public board if certain financial interests are

affected. If a matter before your board creates an appearance of a conflict for you, you must

first disclose the nature of the conflict in writing before participating in deliberations and voting

on the matter. At a minimum, disclosure creates transparency and helps ensure accountability,

impartiality and independence. It enhances the public's confidence in the integrity and fairness

of our government and its processes. It helps ensure the delivery of honest services

unencumbered by personal interest or gain.

To help your board and your public organization comply with the conflict-of-interest law, ask:

• Have all board members completed the conflict-of-interest law's educational

requirements?

Does your board or the public organization
understand how to complete and submit | wa^!^sldeact!vities"forma^

part of an internal control plan related

You may want to consider circulating

to possible conflicts of interest. It may

prompt disclosure before a conflict

arises.

conflict-of-interest law disclosure forms? If so,

where are they retained?

• Does your board have a written policy about

abstention or recusal?

• Are you permitted to work on outside activities that may impact your role as a board

member? If so, how are outside activity requests approved?

• Does your board require the executive to file disclosure forms or outside activity

forms? If so, are the forms reviewed? Is there an approval process required? Are

these activities monitored for potential conflicts?

Finally, remember that the conflict-of-interest law applies to your fellow board members,

employees of the public organization and, in certain instances, to consultants and contractors.

If you learn of a potential conflict of interest - whether by a board member, senior executive or

employee - you need to properly address it. Seek advice from your board's legal counsel or

contact the Ethics Commission.

8. Operate in compliance with the Massachusetts open meeting law.

When you were appointed, you should have received a copy of the state's open meeting law.

Similar to the conflict-of-interest law, the open meeting law applies to both your individual

conduct and the board's operations. For example:

9 I Pa ge



Public boards must give advanced notice of the topics that will be discussed at a

meeting.

Meetings of public boards must be open to

the public, although in limited circumstances

members may hold certain aspects of the

meeting in closed session, away from public

view.

Discussing certain matters with other board

members outside of a properly noticed

meeting - such as by email or telephone -

will likely violate the open meeting law.

Once appointed, all public board

members must sign a certification form

stating that they have received certain

educational materials, that they

understand the requirements of the

open meeting law and that they

understand the consequences for

violating it. These educational materials

include the text of the law, the Attorney

General's regulations, the Attorney

General's Open Meeting Law Guide, and

copies of all determination letters from

the past five years where the Attorney

General found that the public body had
violated the open meeting law.

Because the open meeting law promotes openness and

transparency in government, it contains specific notice

requirements to ensure that the public knows - prior to

the meeting - when and where the board will meet, along with what topics the board intends

to discuss at the meeting. Except in the case of an emergency, a public board must provide

notice of its meeting 48 hours in advance (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays).

The notice must include the date, time and location of the meeting, as well as a list of all topics

that the chair reasonably anticipates will be discussed.2

The law seeks to balance the public's interest in witnessing the deliberations of public officials

with the government's need to manage its operations efficiently. Consequently, a board may

only discuss the topics listed in the meeting notice, unless the topic was not reasonably

anticipated when the notice was posted. While public bodies (such as boards) may discuss

topics that were not reasonably anticipated by the chair, the Massachusetts Attorney General

encourages public bodies to postpone discussion of any topics of significant public concern until

notice can be given to the public.

Further, while most board discussions must be public, as noted above, there are certain

situations in which the board may vote to meet in private. In these instances, your public board

may discuss a matter in what is known as an "executive session."

An executive session may be held for any of ten permissible

reasons, as specified in the open meeting law. Public bodies are

required to post notice of anticipated executive sessions, listing the

topics to be discussed behind closed doors with as much detail as

possible without compromising the lawful purpose for secrecy. Public bodies must begin

meetings in open session before entering executive session and must take a vote to enter

executive session, again providing as much detail as possible about what will be discussed.

See Appendix B at the end

of this guide for a list of the
ten permissible reasons for

entering executive session.

2 The open meeting law also contains additional requirements concerning meeting notices,

including where the notice must be posted.

10 I P age



The open meeting law prohibits communication between or among a quorum of a public board

outside of a noticed meeting on any business within that board's jurisdiction. Therefore, a

series of telephone calls or emails between a quorum of board members - often referred to as

"serial deliberations" - could violate the open meeting law. This is because the public is

entitled to notice and an opportunity to witness deliberations concerning board business.

Ask:

• Does your public organization post meeting notices in advance?

• Do members discuss only what is on the agenda at the meeting?

• Does your board vote to enter "executive session" properly and only for the reasons

set forth in the open meeting law?

• Does your board have practices in place to ensure that members do not have serial

deliberations that violate the open meeting law?

The open meeting law addresses many topics, such as remote participation and meeting

minutes, that are not discussed here. The Massachusetts Attorney General's Office ("AGO") is

responsible for interpreting and enforcing the open meeting law. It produces a comprehensive

guide to the open meeting law, as well as helpful educational material and rulings. The AGO

also provides in-person and online trainings about the open meeting law. Visit the AGO's

website, available at www.mass.gov/ago, or contact the AGO's Division of Open Government,

to learn more about the open meeting law.

9. Ensure that you operate in compliance with the Massachusetts public records law.

The public records law is another way citizens may examine whether their government is

functioning in accordance with its public policy objectives and in compliance with the law.

Indeed, the public records law supports transparency of the decision-making process and

promotes the accountably of public employees, public boards and government officials to the

taxpayers.

Consequently, the law requires that you retain certain records for a period of time, and that

you turn over certain records if a member of the public requests them - when they contain

content related to your official capacity. This is true even if the records are on your personal

computer, personal cellphone or personal email account.

All public boards receive and generate public records in the regular course of business. You

also generate public records when you operate in your official capacity as a public board

member. If you communicate with another individual in your official capacity or exchange

information about matters under your board's purview, for instance, you may create a public

3 For the purposes of the open meeting law, a quorum is a simple majority of the members of

the public board. For example, in the case of a five-member board, the quorum would be

three.

11 I Page



record even if you use your personal email, voicemail or video recording to transmit that

information. A common misperception exists that communications on personal email accounts

or via text messages are not subject to the public records law; this is incorrect as all board-

related communications are subject to public disclosure.

In addition, the law defines the term "record" very broadly and it includes more than written

meeting minutes or agendas. For example, records can include emails,

photographs, voicemails, video tapes, attendance lists and public

meeting sign-in sheets. These records are subject to public records

requests, and you may be required to keep these documents for a

certain period of time. Check with your public organization and the

The Secretary of the

Commonwealth's

Office provides record
retention schedules for

state, county and local

governmental entities.
Secretary of the Commonwealth to determine the full scope of your

record retention obligations.

Ask:

• Does your board have a written policy or a practice related to managing public

records requests?

• Do public board members respond to inquiries about board matters made by the

public in a manner that is consistent with this policy?

• Does your board have an appointed Records Access Officer?

• Does your board have a practice related to the use of personal devices or emails?

• Does your board have a written records retention policy?

For more information on the state's public records law, please contact the Public Records

Division at the Secretary of the Commonwealth's Office at (617) 727-2832. The Secretary of the

Commonwealth's Office also has developed a free, comprehensive guide to the public records

law. The guide, titled A Guide to the Massachusetts Public Records Law, is available on the

Secretary of the Commonwealth's website at www.sec.state.ma.us. See Appendix A.

10. Detect and report suspected fraud, wrongdoing or other misuse of public resources: If

you see something, say something.

Any misuse of public funds and resources affects a public organization's financial well-being,

reputation and ability to accomplish its mission. As a public board member, you have an

important role in preventing and detecting fraud. You and your fellow members are custodians

of the public trust. You have the responsibility to protect public resources, including money,

assets, real property, employee time, digital records and other types of data. Massachusetts

citizens have entrusted these public resources to your care.

Although most employees are honest and hardworking, fraud and other misconduct still occur,

so you must diligently apply preventative measures - often referred to as internal controls - to

help safeguard public assets and taxpayers' interests. As a result, all organizations need

12 I P age



internal controls. Every internal control must be based on the specific organization. Some

common elements of an internal control plan to protect public resource include the following:

• The segregation of duties performed by employees to ensure no one individual can

commit and cover up their own wrongdoing.

• Approval processes for expenditures, with increased oversight for larger

expenditures.

• Methods to track and monitor employee time and attendance, including the use of

leave time.

• Controls to track the public organization's acquisition and disposition of public

assets, such as vehicles, equipment, supplies and petty cash.

• Fraud-reporting mechanisms, including a telephone or email hotline or an

independent complaint review process.

• An anti-fraud policy, as well as employee training on the policy and annual

reminders to follow the policy.

• A code of conduct with standards related to conflict of interest and other

professional standards that align with the public organization's mission.

• Tone at the top: communication from the organization's administration about its

commitment to the highest ethical and professional standards.

• Careful vetting of employees - both before and after hiring - to ensure that their

background and professional certifications meet the entity's standards and support

the entity's mission.

Further, you should determine whether the board has an internal audit committee to check and

verify expenses. If not, advocate for the creation of one. The board needs to set the "tone at

the top/' and communicate that the public organization has zero tolerance for fraud and other

inappropriate activity. An ethical work environment with internal controls is essential to the

proper use of public resources.

Ask:

What fraud risks exist in the public organization your board oversees?

What types of internal controls are in place to

properly monitor the use of public resources?

Does the public organization or your board

perform compliance reviews or audits?

Does your public organization have an anti-fraud | ^email, theoffic.e .at
IGO-FightFraud@state.ma. us.

program that includes training, policies, new-hire

background checks and a fraud hotline or other

fraud-reporting mechanisms?

Report suspected fraud, waste or

other misuse of public funds by
calling the Office's confidential
hotline: (800) 322-1323.

All reports are confidential.

13 I P age



Conclusion

This Office would like to thank the Office of the Attorney General, the Secretary of the

Commonwealth and the State Ethics Commission for their assistance in creating this guide.

To learn more about fulfilling your role as a board member, we hope you will attend the

Office's complimentary class, Are You a Member of a Public Board or Commission? Know Your

Responsibilities. This free class is offered through the Office's Massachusetts Certified Public

Purchasing Official ("MCPPO") program. For information on dates for this course, please see

the Office's website at www.mass.gov/ig.

If you would like to learn even more about protecting your public organization and its limited

public resources, the Office's MCPPO program offers a wide range of training - from public

construction to contract administration to fraud prevention. Please explore the MCPPO's

classes at www.mass.gov/ig.

Thank you for your service and best of luck in your role as a public board member!

14 I Pag e



Appendix A: Sources of A d vice and Assistance

Office of the Attorney General

The Office of the Attorney General

interprets and enforces the open meeting

law.

Office of the Comptroller

The Office of the Comptroller is responsible

for developing internal control guidelines

for Commonwealth departments, including

state agencies and quasi-state agencies.

Office of the Inspector General

The Office of the Inspector General is an

independent agency that prevents and
detects the misuse of public funds and

public property, conducts confidential

investigations, improves transparency in

government, helps government run more

effectively and educates government

employees and the public.

Secretary of the Commonwealth

The Secretary of the Commonwealth

administers the public records law.

Office of the Attorney General

Division of Open Government

OneAshburton Place

Boston, MA 02108

Telephone: 617-963-2540

Email: openmeeting@state.ma.us

Website: www.mass.gov/ago

Office of the Comptroller

One Ashburton Place, 9th Floor

Boston, MA 02108

Telephone: 617-727-9140

Email: comptroller.info@state.ma.us

Website: www.mass.gov/comptroller

Office of the Inspector General

OneAshburton Place, Room 1311

Boston, MA 02108

Telephone: 617-727-9140

Email: IGO-FightFraud@massmail.state.ma.us

Website: www.mass.gov/ig

Secretary of the Commonwealth

Public Records Division

OneAshburton Place, Room 1719

Boston, MA 02108

Telephone: 617-727-2832

Email: pre@sec.state.ma.us

Website: www.sec.state.ma.us

State Ethics Commission

The State Ethics Commission administers

and enforces financial disclosure and

conflict-of-interest law. It also renders

written advisory opinions upon request.

State Ethics Commission

One Ashburton Place, Room 619

Boston, MA 02108

Telephone: 617-371-9500

Website: www.mass.gov/ethics

15 I P age



Appendix B: Reasons for Entering Executive Session

While all meetings of public bodies must be open to the public, certain topics may be discussed

in executive, or closed, session. The open meeting law, G.L. c. 30A, § 21, sets out ten

permissible reasons for entering executive session:

1. To discuss the reputation, character, physical condition or mental health, rather than

professional competence, of an individual, or to discuss the discipline or dismissal of, or

complaints or charges brought against, a public officer, employee, staff member or

individual;

2. To conduct strategy sessions in preparation for negotiations with nonunion personnel or

to conduct collective bargaining sessions or contract negotiations with nonunion

personnel;

3. To discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining or litigation if an open meeting

may have a detrimental effect on the bargaining or litigating position of the public body

and the chair so declares;

4. To discuss the deployment of security personnel or devices, or strategies with respect

thereto;

5. To investigate charges of criminal misconduct or to consider the filing of criminal

complaints;

6. To consider the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if the chair declares

that an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the negotiating position of the

public body;

7. To comply with, or act under the authority of, any general or special law or federal

grant-in-aid requirements;

8. To consider or interview applicants for employment or appointment by a preliminary

screening committee if the chair declares that an open meeting will have a detrimental

effect in obtaining qualified applicants; provided, however, that this clause shall not

apply to any meeting, including meetings of a preliminary screening committee, to

consider and interview applicants who have passed a prior preliminary screening;

9. To meet or confer with a mediator, as defined in section 23C of chapter 233, with

respect to any litigation or decision on any public business within its jurisdiction

involving another party, group or entity, provided that:

(i) any decision to participate in mediation shall be made in an open session and the

parties, issues involved and purpose of the mediation shall be disclosed; and

(ii) no action shall be taken by any public body with respect to those issues which

are the subject of the mediation without deliberation and approval for such

action at an open session.

16 [ P age



10. To discuss trade secrets or confidential, competitively-sensitive or other proprietary

information provided:

in the course of activities conducted by a governmental body as an energy supplier

under a license granted by the department of public utilities pursuant to G.L. c. 164, §

IF.

17 I Pa ge



Council on Aging
Old Town Hall
38 Map!e Street

Middleton,MA. 01949
978-777-4067

www. townofmiddleton. org

January 23,2018

Board of Selectmen
48 South Main Street
Middleton, MA. 01949

Re: Middleton Food Bank Donation/ Bostik.

Please add the following donation to your agenda for acceptance by the Board of Selectmen for the Middleton
Council on Aging, and notify me when the check has been accepted so that it can then be deposited.

Thank you,

Susan Gannon
COA Director

A donation has been made payable to the Town of Middleton Food Bank:

Date: 12/14/17

Name: BOSTIK, 11320 W Watertown Plank Rd, Wauwatosa Wl

Donation: $1,000.00 Check Number 393542

This donor would like to remain anonymous Yes X No

Donation is in memory of or to honor:

8

mcreasi
Highlight



Bostikjnc. :-.J":'": i'f;;',':

11320 W. Watertown Plank Road, Wauwafosa, Wl 53226-3434
MSKIS:.

52'::s:lS:3': ;; ";-

1.12 ;;;;;., ;...;;
!.^ GSV1 :":t

3935^

>K&1B..f48iJi1®T®1£?!8 w®ir® ******$i,ooo'^
nNElz^o^ z^olz^oJCTS CTS

'•;

12/14/2017 ;,

•. HONE THOUSAND DOElJiARS AND ZERO CE^TS'^*:*V^*** **^** ****** **^1f(;^**** ******* ****fv*

PAY TO THB MIDD.LETON FOOD' PANTRY
::ORDBROF po BOX 855N?:M:Gi

MIDDLETON,,,. HA,01949
us ^m'w)




